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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTICE OF 30TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the 30th Annual General Meeting of Biafo Industries Limited will be held on
October 24, 2018 at 11:30 am. at 1st Floor, Biafo House, Plot No. 23, St No. 38-40, I1&T Centre, G-10/4,
| slamabad, to transact thefoll owing business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1 To confirm theminutesof the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 17 July 2018.

2. To receive and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018
together with Auditors report and Directors report thereon.

3. To approve the payment of final cash dividend of Rs5.00 per share (50%) and a so theinterim cash
dividends of Rs 2.50 per share (25%) declared on October 25, 2017, Rs. 6.50 per share (65%)
declared on February 09, 2018 and Rs 7.00 per share (70%) declared on April 24, 2018 making a
total of Rs21.00 per share (210%) cash dividend and 20% bonus sharesfor the year ended June 30,
2018.

4. To appoint Auditors for the year 2018-19 and to fix their remuneration. Retiring Auditors M/s
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountantsbeing eligible offer themselvesfor reappointment
for theyear 2018-19.

5. To transact such other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the
Chairman.
By order of the Board
A
- 2

|slamabad Khawaja Shaiq Tanveer
18 September 2018 Company Secretary
NOTES:

1 Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 16, 2018 to October 24,
2018 bothdaysinclusive.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting shall be entitled to appoint another person, as
his/her and proxy to attend, demand or joinin demanding apoll, speak and voteinstead of his/her and
aproxy so appointed shall have such rights, as attending, speaking and voting at the meeting asare
availableto amember. Proxiesin order to be effective must bereceived at the registered office of the
company not later than 48 hours before the meeting duly stamped, signed and witnessed. A proxy
need not beamember of the Company.
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

3. CDC Shareholders or their proxies are required to bring with them their original National |dentity
cardsor Passportsalong with the Participant's| D numbersand their Account Numbersat thetime of
attending the Annual General Meeting in order to authenticate their usual documents required for
such purposes.

For CNIC & Zakat

4, Members are requested to submit a copy of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to
update our records. In case of non-submission of CNIC (copy), all future dividend warrants may be
withheld.

5. Members are requested to submit declaration as per Zakat & Ushr Ordinance 1980 for zakat
exemption andto advisechangein address, if any.

E-DIVIDEND

Asper Section 242 of the CompaniesAct, 2017, in case of apublic listed company, any dividend payablein
cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled
shareholders. Therefore, through this notice, al shareholders are requested to update their IBAN detailsin
the Central Depository System through respective participants. In case of physical shares, to provide bank
account detailsto our Share Registrar, M/sRiasat | shtiaq Consulting (Pvt) Ltd. E-Dividend mandateformis
enclosed.

Please notethat after October 31, 2017 all cash dividends, declared by the Company, are only to be remitted
to designated bank accounts and not otherwise, so please ensure an early update of your particularsto avoid
any inconvenienceinfuture.

FILERAND NON FILER STATUS

i) The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2017 has made certain amendments in
Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for
deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These tax rates
areasunder:

a) Forfilersof incometax returns15%
b) For non-filersof incometax returns20%

To enablethe Company to maketax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of
20%, al the shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax payers List (ATL)
provided onthewebsite of FBR, despitethefact that they arefilers, are advised to make surethat
their namesareentered into ATL on or before the date of approval of cash dividend at the Annual
General Meeting on October 24, 2018 otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @
20%instead of @ 15%.

i) For any query / problem / information, the investors may contact the Company or the Share
Registrar at thefollowing addresses, phonenumbers, email addresses:
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Biafo Industries Limited

1st Floor, Biafo House, Plot No. 23, St No. 38-40, | & T Centre, G-10/4, | lamabad, Paki stan.
Tel: +92 51 2353450-53, 2353455-57, Fax: +92 51 2353458

Website: www.biafo.com, E-mail: management@biafo.com

Riasat Ishtiaq Consulting (Pvt) Limited
OfficeNo. 19-20, 2nd Floor, Hill View Plaza, Jinnah Avenue, BlueArea, | slamabad, Pakistan
Tel: 49251 2344223-4, Fax: +92 51 2605658

iii) The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax
Number (NTN) updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate members having
physical sharesshould send acopy of their NTN certificateto the company or its Share Registrar
i.e. M/s Riasat Ishtiag Consulting (Pvt) Ltd. The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN
certificates, asthe case may be, must quote company nameand their respectivefolio numbers.
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CHAIRMANS' REVIEW

| am pleased to present the 30th Annual Report of the Company for theyear ended 30 June 2018.

I would like to extend my appreciation to the management and all the staff for reporting higher turnover during the
year. The Company has reported a net turnover of Rs. 1,678.54 M during the period under review compared to Rs.
1,199.63 M during last year and registered an increase of 39.92%. Furthermore, the gross profit for the year increased
by 49.89% to Rs. 836.83 M while the profit after tax increased by 66.14% to Rs. 532.61 M resulting in EPS of Rs.
24.21. TheDirectors Reportwill further highlight the past year of operationsand achievements.

Your Company is continuing to invest in resources for improvement in production efficiency, human capital
devel opment and saf e practi cesto enhancethe confidence of itscustomers, workforce and other stakehol ders.

Over theyears, the Company hasrecord of paying high dividends based on the performance of the Company. Keeping
thisinview the Board has approved Rs.5.00 per share (50%) and bonus shares at therate of 20%i.e. 2 bonus sharefor
10 sharesheld for thelast quarter making atotal dividend of Rs. 21.00 per share (210%) and bonus shares at the rate of
20%i.e. 2 bonussharefor 10 sharesheld for thefinancia year ended 30th June, 2018.

The Board received comprehensive agendas and supporting papersin atimely manner for its meetings and wasfully
involvedinthestrategic planning processandin devel oping thevision of the Company.

The Company has taken necessary measuresto comply with the provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance as
incorporatedinlisting regul ationsof the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing
regulations.

All Directors, including Independent Directors, fully participated in and made contributions to the decision-making
processof theBoard.

The Board hasin place comprehensive policiesfor al relevant areas of the Company's operations and these policies
arereviewed and updated fromtimetotime.

The Audit & Risk Management Committee and Human Resources & Remuneration Committee of the Board met
regularly to strengthen the functions of the Board and overall governance. The system of internal control issoundin
design and hasbeen effectively implemented and monitored.

Looking ahead, the Company will continue to strengthen its position in the market to tap the opportunities likely to
emergefromthe ChinaPakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC) and alied projects.

Intheend, onbehalf of the Board | wishto acknowledgethe contribution of al our dedicated employeesinthe success
of the Company. | wish to thank our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other business partnersfor their
confidence and support. I acknowledge the commitment and contribution made by my fellow directors towards the
continuing successof the Company.

|slamabad Dr. M. Humayun Khan
18 September 2018 Chairman
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors are pleased to present the 30th Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 30
June2018.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
During the period under review salesincreased, in all sectors, barring Oil & Gas sector which saw a

decline of 20.85% dueto reduced seismic exploration programs. The significant increasein saleswas
dueto major new road construction projectsand to large scale mining projects. Suppliesto someof the
Hydel projects commenced in the period under review which we hopewill contribute to the revenues
inmoresignificant manner incomingfinancial year

SALESAND FINANCIALRESULTS:
Net local Salesvalueincreased by 30.30% to Rs. 1,224.39m, while the value of export salesto (EPZ)

increased by 74.70% to Rs. 454.15m, resulting in overall net sales value increase of 39.92% to Rs.
1678.54mintheperiod under review.

Gross profit margin increased by 3.32% to 49.85% due to the higher volume of sales in the period
under review despitelower salesof higher value productstothe Oil & Gas Sector.

Operating profit of the Company increased by 64% to Rs. 713.37m. Net profit after taxation increased
by 66.14%to Rs. 532.61mresultingin EPSof Rs. 24.21 (2017: EPSRs. 14.57)

Finance costs decreased dueto better cash management, (despiteincreased borrowing,) by Rs. 2.04m
t022.91m, dueto borrowingsfor cash flow timing differences.

Your Company continues its efforts to seek new competitive sources, to reduce raw material costs.
Devaluation of the rupee and rising cost of raw materials utilized and taxation will affect costsin the
coming period.

PRODUCTION:
Plant production team continued to perform satisfactorily in meeting the challenges of demand for
variousproductsontimely basisto our customers.

Your Company iscontinuing to invest in resources for improvement in Production efficiency, Human
Resourceand saf e practicesto enhancethe confidence of itsusers, workforceand stakehol ders.

HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT
The Company hasrenewed OHSA S (Occupational Health and Safety Advisory Services) 18001: 2007

and 1SO 9001: 2015 quality Certifications. The Company is continuing its efforts to ensure that its
plant comply with established environment quality standards. The Company does not have any such
operationswhich areharmful for environment.

FUTURE PROSPECTS:
While the Company has commenced supplies to some hydel projectsin the period under review, we

lnnecd %/&Mfl 09
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

expect increased deliveriesin coming financial period. We are hopeful that the new government will
maintainthefocus & prioritiesfor infrastructure projectsin hydel & road construction areawhich will
support business opportunitiesfor the Company in the next few years. The challenges of the country's
current account deficits and reprioritization of expenditure will clarify the focus of availability of
fundsfor theinfrastructure devel opment sector which your Company isdependent on for its business.
Review of CPEC programmesmay |lead to deferral / extension of timelinesof projects. Finalization of
projectslike Khyal Khwar, Kohala Hydro Power Project, Tarbella 5th Expansion, Munda/M ohmand
and Diamer-BhashaHydro Power Project arestill awaited.

RETURNTO SHAREHOLDERS

Board hasapproved final cash dividend of Rs5.00 per share (50%) and bonus sharesat therate of 20%
I.e. 2bonussharefor 10 sharesheldin additionto theinterim cash dividendsof Rs2.50 per share (25%)
declared on October 25, 2017, Rs. 6.50 per share (65%) declared on February 09, 2018 and Rs 7.00 per
share (70%) declared onApril 24, 2018 making atotal of Rs21.00 per share (210%) cash dividend and
20% bonussharesi.e. 2bonussharefor 10 sharesheld for theyear ended June 30, 2018.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

The Companies Act, 2017 became applicable during the year and under fourth schedule of the Act,
new disclosure and presentation requirements applicable on listed companies were adopted in
preparation of thefinancial statements.

Pursuant to joint venture agreement signed with Beijing Auxin Chemicals Technology Limited on 8
June 2017, Auxin Biafo Chemicals (Private) Limited (a private company limited by shares) was
incorporated duringtheyear.

Under the JV agreement, the paid up capital of the newly set up entity will be Rs. 50 million and Biafo
Industries Limited is committed to subscribe 49% of its share capital. The newly incorporated entity
will pursue manufacturing and marketing of emulsion explosives.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Company's Risk Management infrastructure is based upon Enterprise Risk Management
methodology. An independent Risk Management Department, under direct reporting to the Audit &
Risk Management Committeeof the Board, eval uatesand overseesthe effectiveness of thesecontrols.

CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY

Asapart of Corporate Social Responsibility, your Company givesdonationsto various organizations,
hospitals, charitable institutesin thefield of healthcare, education, disaster relief, arts and culture etc
having good reputeintheir field of work. During the period under review Rs. 500,000 each weregiven
as donation to Shaukat Khanum Memoria Trust for construction of cancer hospital and Frontier
Associationfor Mentally Handi capped for itswork for mentaly handi caped persons.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Thetotal number of directorsare 13 asper thefollowing:
a Male: Nine(9)
b. Female: Four (4)

Thecomposition of Boardisasfollows:

Category Names

Independent Directors KhwajaAhmad Hosain
Muhammad Yagoob
Ehsan Mani

Ms. Mehreen Hosain
Ms. Syeda Shahbano Abbas

Other Non-Executive Directors Dr. M. Humayun Khan

M. Zafar Khan

Adnan Aurangzeb

Ms. Ayesha Humayun Khan
Executive Directors M. Afzal Khan

Khawaja Amanullah Askari
Maj. Gen. (Ret'd.) S. Z. M. Askree
Ms. Shirin Safdar

As per Company policy, non-executive directors including independent directors are not paid any
remuneration and areonly paid meeting feeswhichisapproved by theBoard of Directors.

The Board has set up formal process of evaluation of performance of the board directly furthermore
theBoardisinthe processof devel oping the processof eval uation of performance of its Committeesas
per requirementsof Code of Corporate Governance.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
We are pleased to report that the Company hastaken necessary measuresto comply with the provision
of the Code of Corporate Governanceasincorporatedinlisting regulationsof the Stock Exchange.

The Board regularly reviews the Company's strategic direction. Business plans and targets are set by
the Chief Executive & arereviewed by the Board. The Board iscommitted to maintain ahigh standard
of good corporate governance. The Company isin the process of implementing the provisions set out
by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the accordingly amended listing rules
by Stock Exchange.

Asrequired by the Code of Corporate Governance, your Directorsare pleased toreport that:

. Financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, theresultsof itsoperations, cashflow & changesin equity.

lnnecd %/&Mfl 11
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

. Proper booksof account of the Company have been maintained.

. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statementsand accounting estimates are based on reasonable & prudent judgment.

. International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately
disclosed.

. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored. The system itself is also subject to continuous review for enhancement wherever
and whenever necessary.

. Thereisno significant doubt about the Company'sability to continueasagoing concern.

. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as

detailedinthelistingregulations.

. There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are
outstanding ason June 30, 2018 except for those stated in thefinancial statements.

. Fivedirectors of the Company are exempted from Directors Training Program on the basi s of
their level of education and length of experience as provided in the CCG. Further four of the
directors of the Company have obtained certification under Directors training program as
required under clause (xi) of the CCG. None of the Directors had attended any training
programduring theyear.

. The values of investment of various funds, based on their respective accounts as at 30 June
2018 areasunder:
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
Provident Fund Rs: 76,248,375/-
Gratuity Fund Rs: 43,388,176/-

A total of 05 meetings of the Board of Directorswere held during year (July 2017 to June 2018). The
attendance by each Director isgivenasfollows:

lnnecd %/&Mfl 12
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

NAME ATTENDED DESIGNATION | NO. OF MEETINGS
Dr. M. Humayun Khan Chairman 5/5
KhawaaAmanullah Askari MD & CEO 5/5
M. Afzal Khan Director 5/5
Maj. Gen. (Ret'd.) S. Z. M. Askree Director 5/5
Adnan Aurangzeb Director 5/5
Ehsan Mani Director 5/5
KhwajaAhmad Hosain Director 5/5
M. Zafar Khan Director 5/5
Muhammad Yagoob Director 5/5
Ms. Mehreen Hosain Director 4/5
(Alternate Director: M. Salim Khan) Director 1
Ms. Shirin Safdar Director 4/5
Ms. Shandana Humayun Khan* Director 3/4
(Alternate Director: Ms. Ayesha Humayun Khan) 1
Ms. Syeda Shahbano Abbas Director 3/4
Ms. Zishan Afzal Khan* Director 12
(Alternate Director: Ms. Syeda Shahbano Abbas) 1
Ms. Ayesha Humayun Khan Director 1

* These directors resigned from the Board during the year.
L eaveof absenceisgrantedinall casestotheDirectors.

A total of 04 meetings of Audit & Risk Management Committee were held during year (July 2017 to
June2018). Theattendance by each member isgivenasfollows:

NAME ATTENDED DESIGNATION NO. OF MEETINGS
Ehsan Mani Chairman 4/4
Adnan Aurangzeb Member 4/4
Dr. M. Humayun Khan Member 4/4
KhwajaAhmad Hosain Member 4/4
Muhammad Yagoob Member 4/4
Ms Shandana Humayun K han* Member 2/4
Ms. Ayesha Humayun Khan Member 0/0

* Thesedirectorsresigned fromthe Board during theyear.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Leaveof absenceisgrantedinall casestotheMembers.

A total of 06 meetings of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee were held during year
(July 2017 to June 2018). Theattendance by each member isgiven asfollows:

NAME ATTENDED DESIGNATION NO. OF MEETINGS
KhwajaAhmad Hosain Chairman/Member 6/6
Dr. M. Humayun Khan Member/Chairman 6/6
Khawaja Amanullah Askari Member (MD & CEO) 6/6
Adnan Aurangzeb Member 6/6
Muhammad Yagoob Member 6/6
Ms. Mehreen Hosain Member 5/6
Ms. Shirin Safdar Member 3/4

Leaveof absenceisgrantedinall casestotheMembers.

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIALDATA
Key operating andfinancial dataof last six yearsisenclosed.

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Company, Chartered Accountants retire and being
eligibleoffer themsel vesfor reappointment. TheAudit Committee of the Company having considered
thematter, recommend theretiring auditorsfor reappointment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Board would like to take this opportunity to expressits special appreciation to all the employees
of the Company without whose continued commitment and hard work the challenges of new
opportunities could not be achieved. We al so acknowledge the support and cooperation of our major
stakeholders, customers, suppliers and our Bankers specially Allied Bank Ltd, United Bank Ltd and
Faysal Bank Ltd etc.

PATTERN OF SHARE HOLDING
Pattern of shareholdingisenclosed.

By order of the Board

Khawaja Amanullah Askari

Managing Director
| slamabad X 3

18 September 2018 Chief Executive Officer
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

STAKEHOLDERS INFORMATION

(In Thousands, "000")
2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13

FINANCIAL POSITION

Paid up Capital Rs. In'000 220,000 220,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Shareholder Equity* Rs. In'000 963,089 913,516 924,547 916,112 634,347 566,043
Fixed Assets Rs. In'000 562,062 568,771 566,745 556,371 283,730 257,352
Fixed Assets Addition Rs. In'000 17,656 24,739 31,420 75,750 44,347 16,561
OPERATING RESULTS

Net Sales Rs.In'000 1,678,537 1,199,632 1,447,883 1,401,982 1,264,579 1,284,691
Gross Profit Rs. In'000 836,831 558,292 675500 621,458 537,456 457,449
Operating Profit Rs. In'000 713366 434,972 558,706 546,540 464,560 397,251
EBDIT Rs. In'000 706,273 451,398 559,936 545923 463,079 398,405
Profit after taxation Rs. In'000 532,610 320579 398435 392542 318641 286,261
PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Gross Profit Margin % 49.85 46.54 46.65 44.33 42,50 35.61
Net Profit Margin % 31.73 26.72 27.52 28.00 25.20 22.28
Return on Assets* % 33.11 22,50 27.11 28.58 30.61 31.43
Return on Shareholder Equity* % 55.30 35.09 43.10 42.85 50.23 50.57
LIQUIDITY RATIOS

Current Ratio : 1.70 179 177 1.90 2.03 2.15
Quick Ratio : 1.36 1.40 1.38 1.56 1.55 1.65
Cash Generation to Sales : 92.34 101.67 101.09 97.59 98.25 95.42
ASSETS MANAGEMENT RATIOS

Number of Days Stock Days 72 93 74 70 78 54
Number of Days Trade Debts Days 54 59 53 52 50 38
Operating Cycle Days 127 152 126 122 127 92
Fixed Assets Turnover* Times 2.99 211 2.55 2.52 4.46 4.99
Sales /Shareholder Equity* Times 1.74 131 157 153 1.99 2.27
DEBTS MANAGEMENT RATIOS

Total Assetsto Total Debts* Times 2.61 2.99 2.89 3220 2.78 3.01
Debts to Shareholder Equity * % 64 52 55 47 59 53
MARKET RATIOS

Share Price at year end Per Share 320.00 250.30 260.00 198.53 132.00 108.85
Share Price-High Per Share 354.00 401.00 329.00 224.90 149.00 112.35
Share Price-Low Per Share 202.00 220.00 195.00 127.50 90.25 52.00
Earning Per Share Per Share 24.21 14.57 19.92 19.63 15.93 14.31
Price Earning Ratio Times 13.22 17.18 13.05 10.11 8.29 7.60
Dividend Declared Per Share 21.00 14.50 19.50 18.25 14.00 13.00
Bonus Shares % 20.00 10.00 - - - -
Dividend Payout % 86.74 99.51 97.89 92.97 87.87 90.83
Dividend Yield % 6.56 5.79 7.50 9.19 10.61 11.94
Break-up Value Per Share 43.78 4152 46.23 45.81 31.72 28.30

*Shareholder Equity isinclusive of Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets (2018: 270.092 M)(2017:271.087 M)
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STAKEHOLDERS INFORMATION
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2017

Nameof Company  BiafolndustriesLimited.
Year Ended 30th June, 2018
Thecompany hascomplied with therequirementsof the Regul ationsin thefoll owing manner:
1. Thetotal number of directorsare 13 asper thefollowing:
a Male: Nine(9)
b. Female: Four (4)

2. Thecompositionof Boardisasfollows:

Category Names

Independent Directors Khwaja Ahmad Hosain
Muhammad Yagoob
Ehsan Mani

Ms. Mehreen Hosain
Ms. Syeda Shahbano Abbas

Other Non-Executive Directors Dr. M. Humayun Khan

M. Zafar Khan

Adnan Aurangzeb

Ms. Ayesha Humayun Khan
Executive Directors M. Afzal Khan

Khawaja Amanullah Askari
Maj. Gen. (Ret'd.) S. Z. M. Askree
Ms. Shirin Safdar

3. Thedirectors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this Company (Excluding thelisted subsidiariesof listed holding companies
whereapplicable).

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
takento disseminateit throughout the company al ong withitssupporting policiesand procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
datesonwhichthey wereapproved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on rel evant matters have been
taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by adirector
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirementsof Act and the
Regulationswith respect to frequency, recording and circul ating minutes of meeting of board.

8. Theboard of directorsisin process of developing aformal policy and transparent procedures for
remuneration of directorsin accordancewiththeAct and these Regul ations.

9. Fivedirectorsof the Company are exempted from directors Training Program on the basis of their
level of education and length of experienceasprovidedinthe CCG. Further four of thedirectorsof
the Company have obtained certification under directors training program as required under
clause (xi) of the CCG during prior years. None of the Directorshad attended any training program
duringtheyear.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and termsand conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirementsof the Regulations.

11. CFOand CEO duly endorsed thefinancial statementsbeforeapproval of theboard.
12. Theboard hasformed committeescomprising of membersgiven below:

a) Audit & Risk Management Committee
1) Ehsan Mani (Chairman)
i) AdnanAurangzeb
1) Muhammad Yagoob
iv) Ms. AyeshaHumayun Khan
V) KhwajaAhmadHosain
Vi) Dr. M. Humayun Khan

b) HR and Remuneration Committee
1) KhwajaAhmad Hosain (Chairman)
i) Ms. MehreenHosain
i) Dr. M. Humayun Khan
iv) KhawajaAmanullahAskari
V) Muhammad Yagoob
vi) AdnanAurangzeb
vii)  Ms. ShirinSafdar

13. Thetermsof reference of the af oresaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to
thecommitteefor compliance.

14. Thefrequency of meetings(quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committeewereasper following:
a) Audit& Risk Management Committee (quarterly)
b) HRand Remuneration Committee (quarterly)

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function/ or has outsourced the internal audit
function to Riasat Ishtiag & Co who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the
purposeand are conversant with the policiesand procedures of thecompany.
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight
Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of thefirm, their spouses and minor children do
not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

18. Weconfirmthat all other requirementsof the Regul ations have been complied with.

|slamabad Dr. M. Humayun Khan
18 September 2018 Chairman
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Biafo Industries Limited

Review report on the Statement of Compliance in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Biafo Industries Limited for the year ended 30 June 2018 in accordance with the requirements of
regul ation 40 of the Regul ations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility isto review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of
the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review islimited primarily
toinquiriesof the Company's personnel and review of variousdocuments prepared by the Company to
comply withthe Regulations.

As apart of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors statement on internal
control coversall risksand controlsor to form an opinion on the effectiveness of suchinternal controls,
the Company'scorporate governance proceduresand risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section
208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensued compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried procedures to access and
determinethe

Company's processfor identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions
wereundertaken at arm'slength priceor not.

Based on our review, nothing hascometo our attention which causesusto believethat the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with
therequirementscontai ned in the Regul ations as applicableto the Company for theyear ended 30 June
2018.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dated: 18 September, 2018
|slamabad
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Biafo Industries Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Biafo Industries Limited (the Company), which
comprisethe statement of financial position asat 30 June 2018, and the statement of profit or lossand
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financia statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposesof theaudit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or lossand statement of comprehensiveincome, the
statement of changesin equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively giveatrueandfair view of the state of the Company'saffairsasat 30 June 2018 and of the
profit and statement of comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
thenended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilitiesfor theAudit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We areindependent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of
Ethicsfor Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believethat theaudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit mattersarethose mattersthat, in our professional judgment, were of most significanceinour
audit of thefinancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide aseparate opinion onthese matters.

Followingisthekey audit matter:
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S. No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

1

Revenuerecognition
Refer notes 5.8 and 23 to the financial
statements.

The Company is engaged in the
production and sale of commercia
explosives and blasting accessories
including detonatorsand other materials.

The Company recognized revenue from
the sales of commercial explosives and
blasting accessories of Rs. 1,678.5
millionfor theyear ended 30 June 2018.

We identified the recognition of revenue
as a key audit matter because revenue is
one of the key performance indicators of
the Company and givesriseto aninherent
risk that revenue could be subject to
misstatement to meet expectations or
targets.

Our audit procedures to assess the
recognition of revenue, amongst others,
included thefollowing:

« Obtaining an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of
sales and testing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal
controlsover recording of sales

« Comparing a sample of sales
transactions recorded during the
year with sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and
other relevant underlying
documents;

e Comparing a sample of sales
transactions recorded around the
year end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and
other relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the
related revenue was recorded in the
appropriate accounting period; and

e Comparing the details of journad
entries posted to sales accounts
during the year, which met certain
specific risk-based criteria, with the
relevant underlying documentation.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information
included in theannual report for the year ended 30 June 2018, but does not includethefinancial statements
and our auditor'sreport thereon.

Our opinion on the financia statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
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statementsor our knowledge obtained inthe audit or otherwise appearsto bematerially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, wearerequired toreport that fact. We have nothing to report inthisregard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
CompaniesAct, 2017 (X1X of 2017) and for such internal control as management determinesis necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraudor error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue asagoing concern, disclosing, asapplicable, mattersrel ated to going concern and using thegoing
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or hasnorealisticalternative but to do so.

Board of directorsareresponsiblefor overseeing the Company'sfinancial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
freefrom material misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error, and to i ssue an auditor'sreport that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with | SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatementscan arisefrom fraud or error and are considered material if, individually orin
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basisof thesefinancial statements.

Aspart of an audit in accordance with | SAs as applicablein Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout theaudit. Weal so:

+ ldentify and assesstherisksof material misstatement of thefinancial statements, whether dueto fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentationsor theoverrideof internal control.

«  Obtainanunderstanding of internal control relevant totheaudit in order to design audit proceduresthat
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivenessof the Company'sinternal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimatesand rel ated di sclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditionsthat may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue asagoing concern. If
we concludethat amaterial uncertainty exists, we arerequired to draw attention in our auditor'sreport
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to the related disclosuresin the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as agoing
concern.

« Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether thefinancial statementsrepresent the underlying transactionsand eventsina
manner that achievesfair presentation.

We communicatewith theboard of directorsregarding, among other matters, the planned scopeand timing
of theaudit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesininternal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirementsregarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other mattersthat
may reasonably bethought to bear on our independenceand where applicable, rel ated safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those mattersthat were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, wefurther report that in our opinion:

a) Proper booksof account have been kept by the Company asrequired by the CompaniesAct, 2017 (XI1X
of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X of 2017) and arein
agreement with thebooksof account and returns;

c) investmentsmade, expenditureincurred and guarantees extended during the year werefor the purpose
of the Company'sbusiness; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (X V11 of 1980), was deducted
by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that
Ordinance.

Theengagement partner ontheaudit resulting inthisindependent auditor'sreport isAtif Zamurrad Malik.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

|slamabad
18 September 2018
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2018 (Restated) (Restated)
30 June 2018 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Note Rupees Rupees Rupees
Property, plant and equipment 6 531,030,305 536,943,456 534,102,175
Investment property 7 31,031,540 31,827,222 32,643,304
L ong-term deposits 1,793,600 1,793,600 1,778,600
563,855,445 570,564,278 568,524,079
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 8 4,881,880 4,734,712 6,530,512
Stock in trade 9 180,984,146 142,752,225 171,452,185
Trade debts 10 353,437,290 208,638,227 231,358,044
Advances 11 5,767,595 12,989,221 12,583,939
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 12 4,650,777 4,714,825 4,480,277
Advance tax 10,399,824 20,563,768 5,136,306
Other receivables 13 3,635,096 1,983,418 292,938
Short-term investments 14 455,593,056 429,431,919 439,428,293
Cash and bank balances 15 25,630,333 28,432,880 29,908,284
1,044,979,997 854,241,195 901,170,778
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 16 166,515,956 140,371,630 195,904,130
Markup accrued 5,495,901 5,135,461 5,207,812
Short-term borrowings 17 419,694,378 302,542,529 285,691,438
Unclaimed dividend 16,136,061 29,106,897 21,022,630
Unpaid dividend 7,909,501 - -
615,751,797 477,156,517 507,826,010
NET CURRENT ASSETS 429,228,200 377,084,678 393,344,768
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee benefits 18 4,256,427 3,731,466 2,957,812
Deferred tax liability - net 19 25,737,772 30,401,013 34,364,406
29,994,199 34,132,479 37,322,218
NET ASSETS 963,089,446 913,516,477 924,546,629
REPRESENTED BY:
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 20 220,000,000 220,000,000 200,000,000
Unappropriated profit - revenue reserve 472,997,002 422,429,334 452,034,872
Revaluation surplus on property, plant
and equipment - net of tax 21 270,092,444 271,087,143 272,511,757
963,089,446 913,516,477 924,546,629
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22
The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.
£
Al
- >
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & Chairman
Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

NET TURNOVER 23 1,678,537,097 1,199,632,223
Cost of sales 24 (841,706,262) (641,340,658)
GROSS PROFIT 836,830,835 558,291,565
Other income 25 47,264,729 31,298,127
Distribution expenses 26 (28,756,466) (24,223,730)
Administrative expenses 27 (119,065,144) (105,439,631)
Finance costs 28 (22,908,377) (24,954,088)
OPERATING PROFIT 713,365,577 434,972,243
Workers' profit participation fund (35,668,279) (21,748,612)
Workers' welfare fund (14,267,312) (5,999,285)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 663,429,986 407,224,346
TAXATION

Current 29 (134,520,258) (90,217,891)

Deferred 29 3,700,639 3,572,169

(130,819,619) (86,645,722)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 532,610,367 320,578,624
EARNINGS PER SHARE
- Basic and diluted 30 24.21 14.57
The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financia statements.
Azl ot
: >
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & Chairman

Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees Rupees
Profit for the year 532,610,367 320,578,624
Other comprehensive income - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 532,610,367 320,578,624
The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.
£
gl o
- >
Chairman

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation Note 663,429,986 407,224,346
Adjustmentsfor:
Depreciation 6& 7 22,677,893 20,829,512
Finance costs 28 22,908,377 24,954,088
Provision for Workers' profit participation fund 35,668,279 21,748,612
Provision for Workers' welfare fund 14,267,312 5,999,285
Provision for employee benefits 9,352,670 8,666,747
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts - (612,270)
Provision for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools - 1,373,676
Dividend income - (22,475,557)
Gain on remeasurement of investment 25 (27,604,860) (393,483)
Loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25 89,037 (216,820)
Interest income 25 (1,188,111) (811,990)
Unrealized exchange gain 25 (12,157,595) (506,327)
64,013,002 58,555,473
727,442,988 465,779,819
Changes in:
Stores, spare parts and loose tools (147,168) 422,124
Inventories (38,231,921) 28,699,960
Trade debts (133,204,337) 23,332,087
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 5,651,249 (2,311,974)
Trade and other payables 3,579,719 (46,871,131)
(162,352,458) 3,271,066
Cash generated from operations 565,090,530 469,050,885
Finance costs paid (22,547,937) (25,026,439)
Employee benefits paid (8,827,709) (7,893,093)
Payments to Workers' profit participation fund (21,748,612) (27,935,304)
Payments to Workers welfare fund (5,622,371) (8,473,962)
Income taxes paid (124,356,314) (105,645,353)
(183.102,943) (174,974,151)
Net cash from operating activities 381,987,587 294,076,734
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (17,656,409) (24,739,151)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egquipment 1,598,311 2,101,260
Net investment during the year 1,443,723 32,920,414
Interest received on saving accounts and TDRs 1,170,858 778,654
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (13,443,517) 11,061,177
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of dividend [ (489,061,335) || (323,915,733 |
Net cash used in financing activities (489,061,335) (323,915,733)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (120,517,265) (18,777,822)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR (274,109,649) (255,783,154)
Effect of movement in exchange rates on bank balance 562,869 451,327
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 31 (394,064,045) (274,109,649)
The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.
- >
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & Chairman

Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Revenue Reserve

Revaluation surplus Unappropriated

Share capital 21(; lﬂl;:g:;tty: g{;notf 2:;1’(‘1 profits Total equity
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Balance at 01 July 2016, as previously reported 200,000,000 - 452,034,872 652,034,872
Effect of restatement - note 33 - 272,511,757 - 272,511,757
Restated balance at 01 July 2016 200,000,000 272,511,757 452,034,872 924,546,629
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year [ - -] 320,578,624 || 320,578,624 |
Comprehensive income for the year transferred to equity - - 320,578,624 320,578,624
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment realized through
depreciation for the year - net of deferred tax (refer to note 21) - (1,815,838) - (1,815,838)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment on
account of incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax - - 1,815,838 1,815,838
Effect of changein rate of tax on related deferred tax - 391,224 - 391,224
200,000,000 271,087,143 774,429,334 1,245,516,477
Transactions with members recorded directly in equity
Distribution to members
Final dividend of 2016 @ Rs. 7.50 per share - - (150,000,000) (150,000,000)
First interim dividend of 2017 @ Rs. 2.50 per share - - (50,000,000) (50,000,000)
Second interim dividend of 2017 @ Rs. 1.50 per share - - (33,000,000) (33,000,000)
Third interim dividend of 2017 @ Rs. 4.50 per share - - (99,000,000) (99,000,000)
Issue of bonus shares for 2017 @ 10% 20,000,000 - (20,000,000) -
Total distribution to members 20,000,000 - (352,000,000) (332,000,000)
Restated balance at 30 June 2017 220,000,000 271,087,143 422,429,334 913,516,477
Balance at 01 July 2017, as previously reported 220,000,000 - 422,429,334 642,429,334
Effect of restatement - note 33 - 271,087,143 - 271,087,143
Restated balance at 01 July 2017 220,000,000 271,087,143 422,429,334 913,516,477
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year [ - - 532,610,367 || 532,610,367
Comprehensive income for the year transferred to equity - - 532,610,367 532,610,367
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment realized through
depreciation for the year - net of deferred tax (refer to note 21) - (1,957,301) - (1,957,301)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment on
account of incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax - - 1,957,301 1,957,301
Effect of changein rate of tax on related deffered tax - 962,602 - 962,602
220,000,000 270,092,444 956,997,002 1,447,089,446
Transactions with members recorded directly in equity
Distribution to members
Final dividend of 2017 @ Rs. 6.00 per share - - (132,000,000) (132,000,000)
First interim dividend of 2018 @ Rs. 2.50 per share - - (55,000,000) (55,000,000)
Second interim dividend of 2018 @ Rs. 6.50 per share - - (143,000,000) (143,000,000)
Third interim dividend of 2018 @ Rs. 7.00 per share - - (154,000,000) (154,000,000)
Total distribution to members - - (484,000,000) (484,000,000)
Balance at 30 June 2018 220,000,000 270,092,444 472,997,002 963,089,446

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

- 5

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & Chairman
Chief Executive Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

1 LEGALSTATUS AND OPERATIONS
1.1 The Company and its operations

Biafo Industries Limited ("the Company") wasincorporated in Pakistan on 07 September 1988 asa
public limited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the repealed Ordinance) and its
sharesare quoted on the Paki stan Stock Exchange.

The Company started its commercial production on 01 July 1994 and is principally engaged in the
manufacturing of commercial explosives and blasting accessories including detonators and other
materials. The Company'slicensefor manufacturing and sale of explosivesisrequiredto berenewed
annually. The Company's productionfacility issituated at Plot 70, Phasel11, Hattar Industrial Estate,
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, withitsregistered officelocated at 1st Floor, Biafo House, Plot No. 23, Street
No. 38-40,1& T Centre, G-10/4, | lamabad, Pakistan.

1.2 Summary of significant events and transactions
Significant eventsand transactionsaffecting thefinancial statementsare summarised asfollows:

- Dueto thefirst timeapplication of financial reporting requirements under the CompaniesAct, 2017,
including disclosure and presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the Companies Act,
2017, someof theamountsreported for the previousyear have been reclassified.

- Auxin Biafo Chemicals(Private) Limited ("AuxinBiafo"), aprivate company limited by shares, was
incorporated on 09 November 2017 under the Company Act, 2017, with the objective of
manufacturing and marketing emulsion explosives, and to have the capability to supply ground
station design construction & operation aswell as on-site mixed explosive vehiclesfor customers.
AuxinBiafoisan associate of the Company by virtue of common directorship.

Further, as per clause 6.2 of the Joint Venture Agreement ("the Agreement”) entered into on 08 June
2017 between Biafo Industries Limited and Beijing Auxin Chemicals Technology Limited
("Auxin"), both parties agreed to subscribing to AuxinBiafo's paid up capital in the proportion of
51% (Auxin) and 49% (the Company). Further, clause 6.3 of the agreement set the paid-up capital of
AuxinBiafoat Rs. 50 million, dividedinto 5 million ordinary sharesof par valueof Rs. 10 each.

Three directors of the Company have subscribed one share each of AuxinBiafo as nominees of the
Company. However, noinvestment hasbeen madeinto AuxinBiafo by the Company duringtheyear.

Subsequent to year-end in an extraordinary general meeting held on 17 July 2018, the members
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

authorized the Company to make investment of up to USD 2.062 million in equivaent Pakistani
Rupeesin ordinary sharecapital of AuxinBiafo.

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
compriseof:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards), issued by the International
Accounting StandardsBoard (IASB) asnotified under the CompaniesAct, 2017; and

- Provisionsof and directivesissued under the CompaniesAct, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.

3 BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND MEASUREMENT
Thesefinancial statementshavebeen prepared on thehistorical cost basisexcept for thefollowing;

- certainitemsof property, plant and equipment are measured at reval ued amounts; and
- investment at fair valuethrough profit or lossismeasured at fair value.

Themethodsused to measurefair valuesare discussed further in their respectivepolicy notes.
3.1 Functional and presentation currency

These financia statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee (PKR), which is the Company's
functional currency. All financial information presented in PKR has been rounded off to the nearest
of PKR, unlessotherwise stated.

3.2 Significant estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptionsare based on historical experienceand variousother factorsthat are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgment
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

about carrying value of assetsand liabilitiesthat are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
resultsmay differ fromtheseestimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision
affectsonly that period, or inthe period of therevision and future periodsif therevision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting standardsthat have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment inthenext year arediscussed in theensuing paragraphs.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviewsthe useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment on each
reporting date. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the
respectiveitemsof assetswith acorresponding affect on the depreciation chargeand impai rment.

In addition, the Company reviews the carrying value of its revalued property, plant and equipment
with sufficient regularity to ensure the amounts recognized in the financial statements reflect the
valueswhich are not significantly different from the fair values at the reporting dates. The changes
arerecognized through revaluation surplus.

Provisions

Estimates of the amount of provisions recognized are based on current legal and constructive
obligations. Because actual outflows can differ from estimates due to changesin laws, regulations,
public expectations, technology, prices and conditions and can take place many yearsin the future,
the carrying amounts of provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to take account of such
changes.

Impairment of financial and non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment loss. Any change in estimates in future years might
affect the carrying amountsof therespective assetswith acorresponding affect ontheimpairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Taxation

Estimatesand judgments occur in the cal culation of certain tax liabilitiesand in the determination of
the recoverability of certain deferred tax assets, which arise from temporary differences and carry
forwards. The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by
appellate authorities. Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the
income tax department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on
itemsof material natureisin accordancewithlaw, theamountsaredisclosed ascontingent liabilities.

The Company regularly reviews the trend of proportion of incomes between Presumptive Tax
Regimeand Normal Tax Regimeand the changein proportions, if significant, isaccounted for inthe
year of change.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools and stock in trade

The Company reviewsthe carrying value of stores, spare parts and loose toolsand stock in tradefor
possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in estimate in future years might affect the
carrying amounts of the respective items of stores, spares and loose tools and stock in trade with a
corresponding effect ontheprovision. Net realizablevalueisdetermined with referenceto estimated
selling pricelessestimated cost of completion and estimated expenditureto makethesales.

Investment at fair value through profit or loss account - held for trading

Thefair value of held for trading investment is determined by reference to their quoted closing re-
purchase price at the reporting date. Any change in the estimate in future years might affect the
carrying amountsof therespective assetswith the corresponding effect in statement of profit or | oss.

Provision against trade debts, advances and other receivables

The Company regularly reviewstherecoverability of itstrade debts, advancesand other receivables
to assessamount of bad debtsand provision.

4 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (I1FRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for
accounting periodsbeginningonor after 01 July 2018:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

- Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2
clarify the accounting for certain types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three accounting areas (@)
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments
settled net of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for amodification of ashare-based payment from
cash-settled to equity-settled. The new requirements could affect the classification and/or
measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognized
for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s
financial statements.

- Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ - effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifiesthat an entity shall transfer aproperty
to, or from, investment property when, and only whenthereisachangein use. A changein useoccurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is
evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management's intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments are not likely to have an
impact on Company’sfinancial statements.

- Annua Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures') (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)
clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar entities may elect to measure
investmentsin associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate or
joint venture separately at thetimeof initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election
is available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an
Investment entity, when applying the equity method, to retain thefair value measurement applied by
that investment entity associate or joint venture to theinvestment entity associate'sor joint venture's
interestsinsubsidiaries. Thiselectionismade separately for each investment entity associateor joint
venture. Theamendmentsarenot likely to have animpact on Company’ sfinancial statements.

— IFRIC 22 * Foreign Currency Transactionsand Advance Consideration’ (effectivefor annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies which date should be used for tranglation when a
foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The
related itemistranslated using theexchangerate on the date the advanceforeign currency isreceived
or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchangerateto useoninitial recognition of therel ated asset, expense or
income (or part of it) would remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance
consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receiptsin advance, the entity shall
determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The
Company iscurrently assessing theimpact of the|FRIC 22 onitsfinancial statements, if any.

- IFRIC 23 *Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning on or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

after 1 January 2019) clarifiesthe accounting for income tax when thereis uncertainty over income
tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be
reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of thel FRIC 22 onitsfinancial statements, if any.

- IFRS 15* Revenuefrom contractswith customers' (effectivefor annual periodsbeginning on or after
1 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes acomprehensive framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS
18‘Revenue’, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and |FRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes . The
Company iscurrently inthe processof analysing the potential impact of changesrequiredinrevenue
recognition policieson adoption of the standard.

— IFRS 9 ‘Financia Instruments and amendment — Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019
respectively). IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition
and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of
financia instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial
assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The Company is currently in
the process of analysing the potential impact of changesrequired in classification and measurement
of financial instrumentsand theimpact of expected lossmodel on adoption of the standard.

— IFRS 16 ‘Leases (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16
replaces existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 *Leases', IFRIC 4 ‘ Determining whether an
Arrangement containsalLease’, SIC-15 * Operating L eases- Incentives and SIC-27 * Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of aLease’. IFRS 16 introduces asingle, on-
balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make |lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-
value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to
classify leases asfinance or operating leases. The Company is currently in the process of analysing
the potential impact of itslease arrangementsthat will result in recognition of right to use assetsand
liabilitieson adoption of the standard.

— Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Long Term Interests in
Associatesand Joint Ventures (effectivefor annual period beginningon or after 1 January 2019). The
amendment will affect companiesthat finance such entitieswith preference shares or with loansfor
which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or
‘LTI"). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9
and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The
amendmentsarenot likely to have animpact on Company’sfinancial statements.
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- Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
(effectivefor annual periodsbeginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendmentsclarify that on
amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated
actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the
effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the
plan and isdealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of amendmentsis
not likely to have animpact on Company’sfinancial statements.

- Amendment to IFRS4 ‘ Insurance Contracts - Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS4
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). The amendment address issue
arising from the different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new standard IFRS 17
‘Insurance Contracts'. The amendments introduce two alternative options for entities issuing
contractswithin the scope of IFRS 4, notably atemporary exemption and an overlay approach. The
temporary exemption enables eligible entities to defer the implementation date of IFRS 9. The
overlay approach allowsan entity applying IFRS 9 from 1 July 2018 onwardsto remove from profit
or lossthe effectsof some of the accounting mismatchesthat may occur from applying IFRS9before
IFRS 17 is applied. These amendments may impact the Company’s equity accounted investee,
however afinancial impact hasnot been determined.

- Annua Improvements to IFRS Standards 20152017 Cycle - the improvements address
amendmentsto foll owing approved accounting standards:

- IFRS 3*Business Combinations and IFRS 11 * Joint Arrangement’ - the amendment aimsto
clarify the accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation
that meetsthe definition of abusiness. A company re-measuresitspreviously held interestin
ajoint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its
previously heldinterestinajoint operation whenit obtainsjoint control of thebusiness.

- IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that al income tax consequences of
dividends (including paymentson financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized
consi stently with thetransaction that generatesthedistributable profits.

- IAS 23 'Borrowing Costs' - the amendment clarifiesthat acompany treats as part of general
borrowingsany borrowing originally madeto devel op an asset when the asset isready for its
intended useor sale.

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and
arenot likely to haveanimpact on Company’sfinancial statements.
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5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
thesefinancial statementsexcept for the changeasindicated bel ow:

- The Companies Act, 2017 specified certain disclosures to be included in the financial statements.
The Company has presented the required disclosuresin these financial statements and re-presented
certain comparatives. However, there was no change in the reported amounts of profit and other
comprehensiveincome and the amounts presented in the statement of financial position dueto these
re-presentations.

- Upto 30 June 2017, surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment was being measured
under the repealed Companies Ordinance,1984. The surplus arising on the reval uation was credited
to the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment account. With effect from 1 January
2018, the CompaniesAct, 2017 has become applicable and section 235 of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 relating to treatment of surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets has not been
carried forward in the Companies Act, 2017. Accordingly, the management has changed the
accounting policy to bring accounting of revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment in
accordance with IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment’. The effect of this change in accounting
policy, whichisapplied with retrospective effect, hasresulted in transfer of surpluson revaluation of
property, plant and equipment to equity which waspreviously being presented outsidetheequity.

- Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows became effective during the year. The
amendments require disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-
cash changes. Accordingly, those disclosure have been included in note 31.1 to the financia
statements. However, there was no change in the reported figures of statement of profit or loss or
statement of financial position.

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than leasehold land, building on leasehold land, plant and
machinary and capital work in progress, is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Leasehold land, building on leasehold land and plant and
machinary is stated at revalued amount less accumul ated depreciation. Capital work in progressis
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and istransferred to the respectiveitem of
property, plant and equi pment when availablefor intended use. Cost inrelation to property, plant and
equipment comprisesacquisition and other directly attributabl e costs.

Depreciation is recognized in statement of profit or loss on a reducing balance method except for
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el ectric applianceswhich aredepreciated on straight line method at therates specified in note 6tothe
financial statements. Depreciation ischarged from the date at which the asset becomesavailablefor
usetothedateit isdisposed off. Depreciation methods, useful livesand residual valuesarereviewed
at eachreporting dateand adjusted if appropriate.

Items in property, plant and equipment are recognized at revalued amounts based on valuation by
external independent valuer. Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is credited to
capital reservein shareholders equity and presented as a separate lineitem in statement of financial
position.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is
recognised, in other comprehensiveincome and accumulated in reservesin shareholders’ equity. To
the extent that theincrease reverses adecrease previously recognised in profit or loss, theincreaseis
first recognised in profit or loss. Decreasesthat reverse previousincreases of the same asset arefirst
recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the
asset; all other decreasesarechargedto profit or loss.

The cost of replacing part of anitem of property, plant and equipment isrecognized in the carrying
amount of theitemif it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in statement of profit or lossasincurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment,
and arerecognized net within“ other income” in statement of profit or loss.

5.2 Stockin trade
Stock intradeismeasured at lower of cost and net realizablevalue. Cost isdetermined asfollows:

Material intransit: at material cost plusother chargespaidthereon

Raw material: at moving average cost
Work in process: at material and related manufacturing cost
Finished goods: at moving average cost and rel ated manufacturing expenses

Cost comprisesof purchase and other costsincurred in bringing the material to their present location
and condition. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
businessless estimated cost of completion and selling expenses necessarily to beincurred to makea
sae.
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5.3 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Theseare valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable valuelessimpairment. Costis
determined on aweighted average basis and comprises costs of purchase and other costsincurredin
bringing theitemsto their present location and condition. Provision is made for slow moving items
where necessary and isrecognized in the statement of profit or loss. Net realizablevaluesignifiesthe
estimated selling priceintheordinary course of businesslesscostsnecessarily to beincurredin order
tomakeasae.

5.4 Investments

All purchases and sale of investments are recognized using settlement date accounting. Settlement
date is the date on which investments are delivered to or by the Company. All investments are
derecognized when the right to receive economic benefits from the investments has expired or has
been transferred and the Company has transferred substantialy all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

5.4.1 Investment at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading

Aninvestmentisclassified at fair valuethrough profit or lossif itisclassified asheld for tradingoris
designated as such upon initial recognition. Attributable transaction costs are recognized in
statement profit or lossasincurred. Financial assetsat fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair valueand changestherein, arerecognized in statement of profit or loss.

5.4.2 Loansandreceivables

Loansand receivablesarefinancial assetswith fixed or determinable paymentsthat are not quotedin
an active market. Such assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent toinitial recognition, loansand receivablesare measured at amortized
cost using theeffectiveinterest method, lessany impairment | osses.

5.5 Taxation

Taxation for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is recognized in the statement of
profit orloss except totheextent that it relatesto itemsrecognized outside statement of profit or loss
(whether in other comprehensiveincome or directly in equity), if any, in which casethetax amounts
arerecognized directly inequity or in other comprehensiveincome.
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5.5.1 Currenttax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxableincomefor the year at the applicabletax rates after
taking into account tax credit and tax rebates, if any and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previousyears.

5.5.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the statement of financial position liability method providing for
temporary differencesbetween the carrying amountsof assetsand liabilitiesfor financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of tax. In addition, the Company aso
records deferred tax asset on available tax losses. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on
the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assetsand liabilitiesusing
thetax ratesenacted at thereporting date.

A deferred tax asset isrecognized only to the extent that it is probabl e that future taxabl e profitswill
be avail abl e against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Further the Company also
recognizes deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of depreciable fixed assets which is
adjusted against the related surplus. The effect on deferred taxation of the portion of income
expected to fall under presumptive tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of
accounting technical release 27 of thelnstitute of Chartered Accountantsof Pakistan.

Deferred tax assetsand liabilitiesare offset if thereisalegally enforceableright to offset current tax
liabilitiesand assets, and they rel atetoincometaxeslevied by the sametax authority.

5.6  Investment property

Investment property isthe property held either to earn rental or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for salein ordinary course of business. Investment property isinitially measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. The cost of self constructed investment
property includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the investment property to a working condition for its intended use and capitalised
borrowing cost.

Depreciation is provided on areducing balance method and charged to statement of profit or lossto
write off the depreciable amount of each asset over its estimated useful life at the rates specified in
note 6. Depreciation is charged from the month asset is available for use while no depreciation is
chargedinthemonthinwhichtheasset isdisposed off.
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Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.
Major renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.
Gainsandlossesondisposal of assetsareincluded in statement of profit or loss.

Gainsand losseson disposal of investment property are determined by comparing the proceedsfrom
disposal with the carrying amount of investment property, and are recognized net within “other
income” in statement of profit orloss.

5.7  Employee benefits

Salaries, wages and benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Company and measured on an undiscounted basis. The accounting policy for
employeeretirement benefitsisdescribed bel ow;

5.7.1 Accumulating compensated absences

The Company makes provision for compensated un-availed absences accumul ated by itsemployees
and chargefor theyear isrecognized in statement of profit or loss.

5.7.2 Provident fund

The Company has established a recognized provident fund for the eligible employees of the
Company. Provision ismade in the financial statementsfor the amount payable by the Company to
thefundandinthisregard contributionsare made monthly at therate of 10% of basic salary equally
by the Company and the employee. Obligations for contributions to plan is recognized as an
employeebenefit expensein statement of profit or losswhenthey aredue.

5.7.3 Gratuity - defined contribution plan

The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme for all its employees. Provision is made on an
annual basisby way of achargeto the statement of profit or loss, in accordancewith therulesof fund
approved by Board of Trustees.

5.8 Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of government levies, trade discounts and commission. Revenueisrecognized when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
considerationisprobable, the associated costsand possiblereturn of goods can beestimated reliably,
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there is no continuing management invol vement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be
measuredreliably.

5.9 Foreign currencies

PKR isthe functional currency of the Company. Transactionsin foreign currencies are recorded at
the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into PKR at the rate of exchange ruling on the
reporting date and exchangedifferences, if any, are charged to statement of profit or loss.

5.10 Financeincome and cost

Finance income comprisesinterest income on fundsinvested, exchange gain and changesin thefair
valueof financial asset at fair valuethrough profit and |oss. Income on saving accountsisaccrued on
atime proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable rate of return.
Foreign currency gainsand lossesarereported onanet basis.

Finance cost comprisesinterest expense on borrowingsand bank charges. Borrowing costsincurred
for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of timethat isrequired
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for itsintended use or sale are complete. Borrowing costs
that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
arerecognizedin statement of profit or loss.

5.11 Financial instruments

Financial assetsand liabilitiesare recognized when the Company becomesaparty to the contractual
provisionsof theinstrument.

The Company derecognizes afinancial asset when the contractual rightsto the cash flowsfrom the
asset expire, or it transfersthe rights to receive the contractual cash flowsin atransaction in which
substantially all therisksand rewards of ownership of thefinancial asset aretransferred. Any interest
in such transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a
Separateasset or liability.

The Company classifies financial assetsinto the following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables. Financial assets mainly comprise long and short
term deposits, trade debts, advances, investments, other receivablesand cash and bank balances.
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The particular recognition and subsequent measurement methods adopted for significant financial
assetsaredisclosedintheindividual policy statementsassociated with them.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire.

Financial liabilities are recognized initialy at fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Significant financial liabilities are obligations under short term
borrowings, creditors, accrued and other liabilities.

The particular recognition and subsequent measurement methods adopted for significant financial
liabilitiesaredisclosedintheindividual policy statementsassociated with them.

5.12 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are set off in the statement of financial position, only when the
Company hasalegally enforceableright to set off the recognized amountsand intends either to settle
onanet basisor torealizetheassetsand settletheliabilitiessimultaneously.

5.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initialy stated at fair value of consideration to be received.
Subsequent to initial recognition these are carried at their amortized cost as reduced by appropriate
provisionfor impairment, if any. Bad debtsarewritten off whenidentified.

The alowance for doubtful accountsis based on the Company’s assessment of the collectability of
counterparty accounts. The Company regularly reviews its debts and receivables that remain
outstanding past their applicable payment terms and establishes allowance and potential write-offs
by considering factors such as historical experience, credit quality, age of the accounts receivable
balances, and current economic conditionsthat may affect acustomer’sability to pay.

5.14 Trade and other payables

Tradeand other payablesareinitially carried at thefair value of the consideration to be paid in future
for goods and services received. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are carried at amortized
cost.
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5.15 Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefitswill berequired to settle the obligation and areliabl e estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and if required are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

5.16 Mark-up bearing borrowings

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cost being the fair value of consideration
received, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing
borrowingsare stated at amortized cost.

5.17 Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company's membersis recognized as aliability in the period in which
thedividendsareapproved.

5.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaentsfor the purpose of statement of cash flows comprise cash in hand and at
bank and short term borrowingsthat form anintegral part of the Company's cash management. Cash
and cash equivalentsarecarriedinthe statement of financial positionat cost.

5.19 Impairment
5.19.1 Financial assets

Afinancial asset other than held for trading and carried at fair valueisassessed at each reporting date
to determinewhether thereisany objective evidencethat it isimpaired. A financial asset isimpaired
If thereis objective evidence of impairment as aresult of one or more eventsthat occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset, and that | oss event(s) had animpact on the estimated future cash flows
of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a debtor,
restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise, indicationsthat a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changesin the payment
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status of borrowers or issuers, economic conditionsthat corelate with defaults or the disappearance
of an active market for asecurity. In addition, for aninvestment in an equity security, asignificant or
prolonged declineinitsfair valuebelow itscost isobjectiveevidence of impairment.

All impairment lossesare recognized in statement of profit or loss. Animpairment lossisreversedin
the statement of profit or lossif thereversal can berelated objectively to an event occurring after the
Impai rment |osswasrecogni zed.

5.19.2 Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company considers evidence of impairment for financial assets measured at amortized cost
(loansand receivables) at both, specific asset and collectivelevel. All individually significant assets
are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Assetsthat are
not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together assets
withsimilar risk characteristics.

In ng collectiveimpairment, the Company uses historical trends of the probability of default,
thetiming of recoveriesand the amount of lossincurred, adjusted for management’s judgment asto
whether current economic and credit conditionsare such that the actual lossesarelikely to begreater
or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of afinancial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. L osses are recognized in statement of profit
or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investment securities. When an event occurring after the impairment was recognized causes the
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through
statement of profit or [oss.

5.19.3 Non financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable
amount isestimated in order to determinetheextent of theimpairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit isthe greater of itsvaluein use and its
fair valueless coststo sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In the absence of any information about the
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fair value of acash-generating unit, the recoverable amount isdeemed to bethevaluein use. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflowsfrom continuing usethat are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assetsor groupsof assets(the” cash-generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceedsitsestimated recoverableamount. Impairment | ossesare recognized in statement of profit or
loss. Impairment lossesin respect of cash-generating units are allocated to the carrying amounts of
assetsin the cash-generating unit group on pro-ratabasis. Animpairment lossisreversed only to the
extent that the asset carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if noimpairment losshad been recognized.

5.20 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributableto ordinary shareholdersand the wei ghted average number of
ordinary sharesoutstanding, adjusted for theeffectsof all dilutivepotential ordinary shares.

5.21 Fairvalue measurement

‘Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company hasaccessat that date. Thefair value
of aliability reflectsitsnon-performancerisk.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assetsand liabilities.

When oneisavailable, the Company measuresthefair value of aninstrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market isregarded as activeif transactionsfor the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoingbasis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that
maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing atransaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of afinancial instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Company
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determines that the fair value on initia recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair
valueisevidenced neither by aquoted pricein an active market for anidentical asset or liability nor
based on a val uation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in
relation to the measurement, then thefinancial instrument isinitially measured at fair value, adjusted
to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price.
Subsequently, that differenceisrecognised in profit and loss on an appropriate basis over thelife of
theinstrument but no later than when the val uationiswholly supported by observable market dataor
thetransactionisclosed out.
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

6.1 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows:

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of sales 24 13,343,116 12,893,271
Distribution expenses 26 276,444 265,634
Administrative expenses 27 8,262,653 6,854,525
21,882,213 20,013,430
6.2 Revaluation of land, building, plant and machinery

Leaseholdland, building onleasehold land and plant and machinery of the Company werereval ued on 30 June 1996, 30 June 2005, 30
June2010and 30 June2015. L atest valuation for 2015 wascarried out by anindependent valuer M/SAsrem Private Limited. Land and
building were revalued on the market basis and plant and machinery under the depreciated replacement cost basis. This revaluation
resulted in net surplus of Rs. 213.352 million. Balance of revaluation surplus net of incremental depreciation included in the book
value of these assets as stated in note 21 amounted to Rs. 275.6 million (2017: Rs. 278.2 million) at theyear end. Thefair valuewhen
determined fallsunder level 3 hierarchy. Sensitivity analysishasnot been presented since dataabout observableinputisnot available.

Previously, the surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment was classified below shareholders' equity in statement of
financial position. As explained in note 5.1, the Company has changed its accounting policy and now the surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equi pment hasbeen classified/presented within sharehol ders’ equity.

Forced sale values as per reval uation performed on 30 June 2015 were asfollows, however, the forced sale values do not include the

impact of subsequent additions:
Rupees
Leasehold land 169,344,000
Building on leasehold land 30,351,000
Plant and machinery 96,050,000
Had there been no revaluations, related figures of revalued leasehold land, building and plant and machinery would have been as
follows:
Net book value
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees Rupees
Leasehold land 44,033,883 44,033,883
Building on leasehold land 88,494,523 89,086,544
Plant and machinery 81,204,690 79,036,097
213,733,096 212,156,524
6.3 Detail of disposal of property, plant and equipment:
Relationship of
Cost  Book value Sale (Loss) / gain Mode of To purchaser w1th'
proceeds disposal company or any of its
directors
Rupees
Yamaha Dhoom 70 [VP - 757] 45,700 23,027 15,546 (7,481) Negotiation  Mr. Abdul Waheed Employee
Suzuki Swift [VT - 320] 1,293,387 739,211 638,656  (100,556) Negotiation Mr. Nadeem Ahmed Employee
Suzuki Swift [VY - 291] 1,329,497 750,691 760,504 9,813 Negotiation Mr. Mumtaz Ud Din Employee
Air Conditioner 36,650 15,444 9,663 (5,781) Negotiation Mr. Muhammad Asif -
Generator Aksa 209,930 158,974 173,942 14,968 Negotiation  Abdullah Brothers -
June 2018 2,915,164 1,687,347 1,598,311 (89,037)
June 2017 3,465,435 1,884,440 2,101,260 216,820
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

6.4

Freehold and leasehold lands of the Company are located
Location

Plot 70, Phase 3, Hattar Industrial Estate, Hattar

Plot 23, 1&T Centre, G-10/4, |slamabad

Components of capital work in progress

Plant and machinery
Others

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Cost at 01 July
Accumulated depreciation at 01 July
Carrying amount at 01 July

Transfers in/(out)
Depreciation charge for the year (2.5% p.a.)
Carrying amount at 30 June

Cost at 30 June
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June
Carrying amount at 30 June

at the following locations:

Usage Area
Production Plant 29.40 Acres
Head Office Building 533.33SqYds
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees Rupees
1,253,365 7,116,285
266,000 -
1,519,365 7,116,285
32,848,608 32,848,608
(1,021,387) (205,304)
31,827,221 32,643,304
(795,681) (816,082)
31,031,540 31,827,222
32,848,608 32,848,608
(1,817,068) (1,021,386)
31,031,540 31,827,222

As per latest valuation of investment property, fair value of investment property is Rs. 32,905,399 (2017: Rs. 31,603,793) and the

forced salevalueason 30 June2018isRs. 74,062,000.

The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate recognized
professional qualificationsand recent experienceinthelocation and category of the property being valued. Thefair valuefalsinlevel
3 hierarchy, ismeasured for disclosure purpose only. Sensitivity analysis has not been presented since data about observableinput is

not available.

STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
Mechanical Store

Electrical Store

Genera Store

Safety Equipment

Provision for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools

STOCK IN TRADE

Raw materials
Packing materials
Work in process
Finished goods
Goods in transit

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees Rupees
7,485,151 7,891,440
2,564,982 1,795,975
689,454 961,186
222,382 166,200
10,961,969 10,814,801
(6,080,089) (6,080,089)
4,881,880 4,734,712
121,428,699 99,220,748
4,160,665 4,183,159
5,101,669 3,331,212
31,657,638 22,525,711
18,635,475 13,491,395
180,984,146 142,752,225
Apnual %/ww/ 56
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

10 TRADE DEBTS 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
Unsecured - considered good 10.1 353,437,290 208,638,227

10.1 ThisincludesRs. 69,554,954 (2017: Rs. 78,142,250) receivablefrom customersagainst export sal esthrough contract for Saindak and
Dudder (2017: Saindak and Dudder) projects in Balochistan, Pakistan, which has been declared as Export Processing Zone by the
Government of Pakistan (GoP).

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Note Rupees Rupees
11 ADVANCES
Advances to suppliers - considered good and unsecured 5,049,128 12,340,745
Advances to employees - interest free, considered good and unsecured 718,467 648,476
5,767,595 12,989,221
12 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Trade deposits - interest free 2,032,071 2,824,455
Prepayments 2,618,706 1,890,370
4,650,777 4,714,825
13 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good:
Interest income receivable 106,915 89,662
Sdlestax receivable - net - 792,144
Receivable from related party 131 1,609,545 770,000
Others 1,918,636 331,612
3,635,096 1,983,418

13.1 This represents amount receivable for expenses incurred on behalf of related party, Auxin Biafo Chemicals (Private) Limited
("AuxinBiafo"), aprivate company limited by shares, whichwasincorporated on 09 November 2017 under the CompaniesAct, 2017,
with the objective of manufacturing and marketing emulsion explosives, and to have the capability to supply ground station design
construction and operation as well as on-site mixed explosive vehicles for customers. The year-end balance also represents the
maxi mum aggregate amont outstanding at any timeduring theyear fromAuxinBiafo.

14 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
30 June 2018 30 June 2017 Note 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Number of units Rupees

Investments at fair value

through profit or loss:
ABL Income Fund - 14,537,032 14.1 - 145,884,929

ABL Cash Fund 9,473,693 - 14.1 100,387,042 -

Faysal Money Market Fund 1,144,138 1,144,138 14.1 121,976,539 115,843,960
UBL Liquidity Plus Fund 1,567,182 1,093,311 141 166,459,475 110,063,030
388,823,056 371,791,919
Loans and receivables - term deposit receipts (TDRS) 14.2 66,770,000 57,640,000

455,593,056 429,431,919
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

14.1 Theseinvestments are stated at fair value at the year end, using the year end redemption price. Gain on remeasurement isincluded in
other operating income. As stated in note 17, 9,473,693 unitsin ABL Cash Fund, 1,144,138 unitsin Faysal Money Market Fund and
1,567,182 unitsin UBL Liquidity Plus Fund (2017: 13,947,974 unitsin ABL Income Fund, 1,139,954 unitsin Faysal Money Market
Fund and 776,281 unitsin UBL Liquidity Plus Fund) are pledged as security against running finance facilities arranged with Allied
Bank Limited, Faysal Bank Limited and United Bank Limited respectively.

14.2 Thisrepresentsforeign currency term deposit receipts (TDRs) amounting to USD 550,000 (2017: USD 550,000). Thiscarriesinterest
rate at 2.10% (2017: 2.00%) per annum. As stated in note 17.1, TDRs of USD 550,000 are given as security against running finance
facility arranged with Allied Bank Limited.

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Note Rupees Rupees
15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash at bank - conventional banking
Current accounts 15.1 25,560,789 28,386,680
Saving accounts 15.2 29,886 21,592
25,590,675 28,408,272
Cash in hand 39,658 24,608

25,630,333 28,432,880

15.1 Theseincludeforeign currency balancesamountingto Rs. 1,746,229 (USD 14,384), (2017: Rs. 512,497) (USD 4,890).

i 0, . 0,
15.2 Thesecarry interest at therate of 3.75% (2017: 3.75%) per annum. 30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Note Rupees Rupees
16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 58,873,898 72,317,696
Advances from customers 8,560,158 6,248,709
Accrued liabilities 26,201,036 21,918,903
Salestax payable - net 9,319,573 -
Insurance 1,026,019 622,255
Workers' profit participation fund payable 16.1 35,668,279 21,748,612
Workers welfare fund payable 16.2 17,344,386 8,699,445
Payable to staff gratuity fund - unsecured 16.3 - -
Payable to employees' provident fund - unsecured - -
Withholding tax payable 30,839 33,009
Others 9,491,768 8,783,001

166,515,956 140,371,630

16.1 Workers' profit participation fund payable

Balance at beginning of the year 21,748,612 27,935,304

Charge for the year 35,668,279 21,748,612
57,416,891 49,683,916

Paid to the fund during the year (21,748,612) (27,935,304)

35,668,279 21,748,612

16.2 Workers' welfare fund payable

Balance at beginning of the year 8,699,445 11,174,122
Charge for the year 14,267,312 8,699,445
22,966,757 19,873,567
Adjustment / payments made during the year (5,622,371) (11,174,122)
17,344,386 8,699,445
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

16.3 Payable to staff gratuity fund - unsecured Note Rupees Rupees
Balance at the beginning of the year - 5,343,775
Provision made during the year 8,796,483 7,175,315
Contribution made to the fund during the year (8,796,483)  (12,519,090)
Balance at the end of the year - -

17 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - under mark-up
arrangement (secured)

Allied Bank Limited

Running finance / ERF 171 205,022,377 137,898,636
Faysal Bank Limited

Running finance 17.2 86,232,158 67,852,320
United Bank Limited

Running finance 17.3 128,439,843 96,791,573

419,694,378 302,542,529

17.1 Thisrepresentsutilized amount of running financefacilitieswith cumulative sanctioned limit of Rs. 284.34 million (2017: Rs. 327.84
million). Thesefacilitiesincluderunning financefacility - RF | with sanctioned limit of Rs. 140 million carrying mark-up at therate of
3 months KIBOR + 1.00% of the utilized amount, running finance facility - RF Il with a maximum sanctioned limit of Rs. 90.00
million carrying markup at therate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.75% per annum of the utilized amount and secured against investment in
unitsof ABL Cash Fund having market value of Rs. 94.74 million (refer note 14) with 5% margin, and running financefacility - RF 11
with maximum sanctioned limit of Rs. 54.340 million (2017: Rs.54.340 million) carrying markup at the rate of 3 months KIBOR +
0.75% per annum of the utilized amount and secured against the investment made in the ABL term deposit recei pts of USD 550,000
with 5% margin. Refer note 14.

RF | has sub limit of letter of credit - sight (foreign), Letter of credit - usance (foreign), Export Refinance and FCEF. Further, the
Company hasfacilitiesaggregating to Rs. 80 million (2017: Rs. 75 million) for Export Re-finance and FCEF and for issuance of |etter
of credits(LCs) and | etter of guarantees(L Gs) secured against cash and cash equival entswithamargin of 10%.

17.2 This represents utilized amount of running finance facility with a sanctioned limit of Rs. 150 million (2017: Rs. 150 million) and
carriesmark up at therate of 3 months KIBOR + 1% per annum payable on quarterly basis. Thefacility issecured against investment
inunitsof Faysal Money Market Fund with a5% margin. Refer note 14.

17.3 This represents utilized amount of running finance facility of Rs. 200 million (2017: Rs. 150 million) for financing working capital
requirements of the Company. The facility carries markup at the rate of 1 month KIBOR + 0.75% per annum. The facility is secured
againstinvestmentinunitsof UBL Liquidity PlusFund with 5% margin. Refer note 14.

17.4 Thefacilitiesmentioned in note 17.1 are secured by way of first charge amounting to Rs. 315 million on all present and future current
assets (excluding financial assets) and fixed assets (excluding head office building) of the Company including equitable mortgage
over industrial property of the Company, lien on valid import and export documents of the Company and corporate guarantee of the
Company inadditionto security mentionedinnote 17.1.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Rupees Rupees
18 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Accumulating compensated absences
Balance at 01 July 3,731,466 2,957,812
Charge for the year 556,187 774,714
4,287,653 3,732,526
Benefits paid during the year (31,226) (1,060)
Balance at 30 June 4,256,427 3,731,466
Actuarial valuation of accumulating compensated absences has not been carried out as the impact of such valuation is deemed
immaterial.
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees Rupees
19 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY- net
The net balance of deferred tax isin respect of
the following temporary differences:
Accelerated depreciation on property, plant and equipment 22,338,035 25,628,275
Retirement benefits (864,522) (895,552)
Provision for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools (1,234,926) (1,459,221)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 5,499,185 7,127,511
25,737,772 30,401,013

19.1 Based on the Company's estimate of future export sales, adjustment of Rs. 24.91 million (2017: Rs. 25.3 million) hasbeen madeinthe
taxabletemporary differencesat the year end. Thishasresulted inincreased after tax profit by Rs. 6.4 million (2017: Rs. 7.6 million)
with corresponding decreasein deferred tax liability by the sameamount.

20 SHARE CAPITAL
20.1 Authorized share capital
This represents 60,000,000 (2017: 60,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

20.2 Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital

30 June 2018 30 June 2017 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
(Number of shares) (Rupees)
20,000,000 20,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued for cash 200,000,000 200,000,000
2,000,000 2,000,000 Ordinay sharesof Rs. 10 each issued as 20,000,000 20,000,000
fully paid bonus shares
22,000,000 22,000,000 220,000,000 220,000,000

20.2.1  Theseinclude 11,085,136 (2017: 6,408,196) ordinary sharesof Rs. 10 each held by the Directorsof the Company.

20.2.2  All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of these shares are entitled to dividends as
declared fromtimetotimeand are entitled to onevote per shareat general meetingsof the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21 REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - net of tax Rupees Rupees
Balance at 01 July 278,214,654 280,727,459
Surplus on revaluation during the year- net - -
278,214,654 280,727,459
Transferred to equity in respect of incremental
depreciation - net of deferred tax (1,957,301) (1,815,838)
Related deferred tax on incremental depreciation (665,724) (696,967)
(2,623,025) (2,512,805)
Balance at 30 June 275,591,629 278,214,654
Related deferred tax liability:
Balance at 01 July (7,127,511) (8,215,702)
Movement during the year 1,628,326 1,088,191
Balance at 30 June (5,499,185) (7,127,511)
270,092,444 271,087,143
22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
221 Contingencies

22.1.1  Industrial Estate Hattar of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Economic Zone Development and Management Company (formally Sarhad
Development Authority), Khyber Pakhtunkhwa has raised an additional demand of Rs. 6,203,400 against the Company relating to
additional payment to be made to original owners of the land for which lease was signed and full payment was made in 1991. The
Company hasnot acknowl edged the claim and hasfiled an appeal against the demand beforethe Civil Judge, Haripur on 02 May 2002.
Thecourt has stayed the demand and currently the caseiswith the Chairman, IEMC & HIA for arbitration. Pending the outcome of the
appeal, no provision has been madein thesefinancial statementsfor such demand asthe management is confident that the appeal will
bedecidedinthe Company'sfavour.

22.2 Commitments

22.2.1  Lettersof credit issued by Allied Bank Limited on behalf of the Company for import of raw materials, outstanding at the year end
amountedto Rs. 40,300,867 (2017: Rs. 32,707,040).

22.2.2  Letter of guarantee issued by Allied Bank Limited on behalf of the Company for the issuance of performance bond to secure the
contracts with different government and private entities outstanding at the year end amounting to Rs. 17,071,182 (2017: Rs.

1,000,000).
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
23 NET TURNOVER Rupees Rupees
Turnover 1,445,876,971 1,114,416,392
Sales tax (210,669,435) (163,185,826)
Commissions (10,819,014) (11,551,486)
Net local sales 1,224,388,522 939,679,080
Net export sales 454,148,575 259,953,143
1,678,537,097 1,199,632,223

23.1

Export sales represent sales made through contract to customers for Saindak and Dudder (2017: Saindak and Dudder) projectsin
Bal ochi stan, Paki stan which hasbeen declared as Export Processing Zone by the Government of Pakistan (GoP).
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30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
24 COST OF SALES

Materials consumed 24.1 603,690,392 444,252,851
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 13,677,370 4,875,709
Packing materials consumed 22,307,900 15,233,713
Electricity charges 8,899,733 8,068,096
Salaries, wages and other benefits 24.2 107,398,639 84,084,668
Insurance 6,320,888 4,571,724
Repairs and maintenance 7,527,225 2,735,577
Depreciation 6.1 13,343,116 12,893,271
Vehicle running and maintenance 1,778,522 1,147,664
Travelling and conveyance 1,318,518 447,832
Water charges 72,000 72,010
Telephone, telex and postage 205,846 211,829
Printing and stationery 254,122 162,498
Canteen 1,100,977 851,424
Transportation 50,601,986 31,416,892
Fees and subscription 1,122,666 889,845
Vehicle rent 2,294,755 1,861,155
Security charges 4,816,832 4,231,137
Saindak expenses 4,695,503 2,500,406
Miscellaneous expenses 1,181,656 1,025,612
Provision for slow moving stores, spare parts and loose tools - 1,373,676
852,608,646 622,907,589

Work in process:
at beginning of the year 3,331,212 5,820,932
at end of the year (5,101,669) (3,331,212)
(1,770,457) 2,489,720
Cost of goods manufactured 850,838,189 625,397,309

Finished goods:
at beginning of the year 22,525,711 38,469,060
at end of the year (31,657,638) (22,525,711)
(9,131,927) 15,943,349
841,706,262 641,340,658
24.1 Materials consumed

Balance at 01 July 99,220,748 98,053,460
Purchases during the year 625,898,343 445,420,139
725,119,091 543,473,599
Balance at 30 June (121,428,699) (99,220,748)
603,690,392 444,252,851

24.2 This includes Rs. 7,933,771 (2017: Rs. 7,355,707) charged on account of gratuity, provident fund and employees compensated
absences.
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30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

25 OTHER INCOME

From financial assets:

Dividend income - 22,475,557
Ganon remegsurement of mves.tment at fair value 27,604,860 303483
through profit or loss - conventional
Interest on investment in TDRs 1,166,737 793,868
Exchange gain - net (non-derivative financial instruments) 12,157,595 506,327
Rental income 5,953,200 5,494,950
Bad debts recovered - 612,270
Income from services 450,000 -
Interest on bad debts recovered - 786,730
Interest on saving accounts 21,374 18,122
47,353,766 31,081,307
From non-financial assets:
(Loss) / gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (89,037) | | 216,820 |
(89,037) 216,820
47,264,729 31,298,127
26 DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits 26.1 22,403,406 19,664,134
Staff travelling and conveyance 3,825,452 2,586,566
Telephone and postage 145,282 123,998
Entertainment 688,481 689,513
Printing and stationary 152,570 154,920
Vehicle running and maintenance 1,070,836 505,328
Insurance 191,835 140,337
Other charges 2,160 93,300
Depreciation 6.1 276,444 265,634
28,756,466 24,223,730

26.1 This include Rs. 2,536,261 (2017: Rs. 2,057,850) charged on account of gratuity, provident fund and employees compensated
absences.
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30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Chief Executive and Directors remuneration
Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1 48,810,000 46,346,775
Directors travelling and conveyance 211 25,687,357 23,464,169
Staff travelling 19,906,575 12,510,008
Electricity, gas and water charges 30,490 52,382
Telephone, telex and postage 985,534 1,006,325
Rent, rates and taxes 1,054,363 1,098,980
Legal and professional charges 92,904 88,258
Donation 3,503,083 5,225,941
Auditors remuneration 272 1,000,000 J
Printing and stationery 27.3 1,200,000 800,000
Entertainment 890,799 1,028,593
Insurance 372,861 365,565
Advertisements 284,206 335,364
Vehicle running and maintenance 666,041 373,942
Repair and maintenance 2,043,738 1,649,495
Security charges - head office 1,656,865 1,647,070
General expenses 740,040 719,670
Depreciation on investment property 1,081,954 1,056,487
Depreciation 795,681 816,082

6.1 8,262,653 6,854,525
119,065,144 105,439,631

27.1 This includes Rs. 4,373,608 (2017: Rs. 4,002,370) charged on account of gratuity, provident fund and employees compensated
absences.

27.2 Rs. 500,000 each as donations were given to Shaukat Khanum Memoria Trust for costruction of cancer hospital and Frontier
Associationfor Mentally Handi capped for itswork for mentaly handicaped persons. Mr. Ehsan Mani, Director of the Company, isalso
member of Board of Governorsof Shaukat Khanum Memorial Trust.

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees Rupees

27.3 Auditors' remuneration
Statutory audit 650,000 575,000
Half year review 150,000 135,000
Other certifications 400,000 90,000

1,200,000 800,000

28 FINANCE COSTS
Mark up on short term borrowings - secured 20,165,245 23,344,539
Bank charges 2,743,132 1,609,549

22,908,377 24,954,088

29 TAXATION
Current:

- Prior years (54,431) (1,267,357)

- For the year 134,574,689 91,485,248
134,520,258 90,217,891
Deferred (3,700,639) (3,572,169)
130,819,619 86,645,722
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30 June 2018 30 June 2017
29.1 Reconciliation of tax expense with tax on accounting profit: Rupees Rupees
Profit before taxation 663,429,986 407,224,346
Tax rate 30% 31%
Tax on accounting profit 199,028,996 126,239,547
Tax effect of income charged at lower tax rate (56,644,270) (33,483,190)
Tax effect of prior years (54,431) (1,267,357)
Tax credit for selling more than 90% to sales tax - (2,575,263)
Others (11,510,676) (2,268,015)
130,819,619 86,645,722

29.2 Theprovisionfor current tax representstax on taxableincomeat therate of 29%. A ccording to management, thetax provision madein
thefinancial statementsissufficient. A comparison of |ast threeyearsof incometax provision with tax assessed i s presented bel ow:

2017 2016 2015
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Income tax provision for the year - accounts 91,485,248 132,214,427 138,441,639
Income tax as per tax assessment 91,539,679 130,962,305 138,975,338

29.3 Thereturnsfor and up to Tax Year 2017 have been filed by the Company. Thetaxation authoritiesare empowered to question or amend
an assessment within 5 yearsof theend of thefinancial year inwhichthereturnwasfiled.

29.4 Thetax authority whileissuing appeal effect order under section 124 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 [the" Ordinance"] for the Tax
Year 2012 disallowed expensesamounting to Rs. 28,226,385 rel ating to Sal aries, WPPF, donations and expensesrel ating to Final Tax
Regime (FTR). Further, the tax credit has only been alowed to the extent of tax demand determined so there is no outstanding tax
liahility based on the appeal effect order. Being aggrieved with the order of thetax authority, the Company hasfiled an appeal before
Appellate Tribunal whichispending disposal.

29.5 The Company has also been selected for audit of itsincome tax affairs for the Tax Year 2015 and the tax authority has required the
Company to furnish detailed records. The Company hasadequately responded to theinformation document request and no order isyet
framed by thetax authority.

29.6 Thetax authority hasissued letter contending short fall of Rs. 61,401,195 in advance tax paid by the Company for the Tax Year 2017.
Onwrit petition filed by the Company, the | slamabad High Court has granted stay against recovery of tax demand till the next date of

hearing.
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
30 EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted
Profit for the year (Rupees) 532,610,367 320,578,624
Average number of shares outstanding during the year (Number) 22,000,000 22,000,000
Earnings per share (Rupees) 24.21 14.57
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
31 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 15 25,630,333 28,432,880
Short-term borrowings 17 (419,694,378) (302,542,529)
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
statement of cash flows (394,064,045) (274,109,649)
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31.1 Reconcilliation of movements of liabilities of cash flows arising from financing activities:
Liabilities
Unpaid
dividend and
unclaimed Total
dividend
Rupees
Balance at 01 July 2017 29,106,897 29,106,897
Changes from financing cash flows
Dividend paid (489,061,335) (489,061,335)
Total changes from financing cash flows (489,061,335) (489,061,335)
Other Changes
Dividend announced - -
Total liability-related other changes (484,000,000) (484,000,000)
Balance at 30 June 2018 24,045,562 24,045,562
32 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Chief Executive Executive .
Officer Directors Executives Total
2018 (Rupees)
Managerial remuneration 22,800,000 20,160,000 52,164,000 95,124,000
Employee benefits 1,900,000 - 5,505,808 7,405,808
Bonus 2,050,000 1,900,000 8,694,000 12,644,000
Total 26,750,000 22,060,000 66,363,808 115,173,808
Number of persons 1 3 22
2017
Managerial remuneration 20,896,775 17,280,000 37,530,000 75,706,775
Employee benefits 1,750,000 - 5,956,412 7,706,412
Bonus 3,500,000 2,920,000 6,255,000 12,675,000
Total 26,146,775 20,200,000 49,741,412 96,088,187
Number of persons 1 3 18

The aggregate amount charged in these financial statementsin respect of meeting fee paid to other than Chief Executive Officer and
threeDirectors(2017: Three) wasRs. 14,325,000 (2017: Rs. 9,459,000).

Chief Executive Officer, Executive Directors, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Technical Advisor are provided with the Company's
maintained cars.
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33 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

33.1 The effect of change in accounting policy described in note 5 is summarized below:

As at 30 June 2017 Asat 30 June 2016
As previously As restated Restatement Aspreviously Asrestated  Restatement
reported reported
Rupees Rupees

Effect on statement of financial
position
Surplus on revaluation of property,

plant and equipment 271,087,143 - (271,087,143) 272,511,757 - (272,511,757)
Share capital and reserves 642,429,334 913,516,477 271,087,143 672,034,872 944,546,629 272,511,757
Effect on statement of changes in
equity
Revaluation surplus on property,

plant and equipment - 271,087,143 271,087,143 - 272,511,757 272,511,757

33.2 There was no impact on figures presented in statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income and cash flows as a result of the

retrospective application of changein accounting policy.

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comprise of associated undertakings, directors, key management personnel, entities over which thedirectorsare able
to exerciseinfluence, employees provident fund and gratuity fund. Transactionswith related parties and balances outstanding at the

year end areasfollows:

Dividend to Non Executive Directors
Other related parties

Remuneration including benefits and perquisites of

key management personnel

Dividend to key management personnel (Executive Directors)
Contribution towards employees' provident fund

Contribution towards employees' gratuity fund

Receivable from Auxin Biafo Chemicals (Private) Limited

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Rupees Rupees
231,858,792 83,251,696
48,810,000 46,346,775
12,014,200 8,482,600
5,443,593 4,862,959
8,796,483 7,892,033
1,609,545 770,000
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Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions during the year:

Associated company Basis of relationship Number of Aggregate
shares held in %age
the Company shareholding

Auxin Biafo Chemicals Common Directorship .
(Private) Limited Nil -

Related Party Basis of relationship Number of Aggregate

shares held in %age
the Company shareholding
in the Company

M. Humayun Khan Chairman 66,000 0.30%

M. Afzal Khan Deputy Chairman 150,000 0.68%

Khawaja Amanullah Askari Chief Executive Officer 329,000 1.50%

Syed Zaffar Mehdi Askree Director 17,600 0.08%

Shirin Safdar Director 49,500 0.23%

Ayesha Humayun Khan Director 5,500,000 25.00%

Mehreen Hosain Director 12,146 0.06%

Muhammad Zafar Khan Director 4,497,610 20.44%

Ehsan Mani Director 87,450 0.40%

Adnan Aurangzeb Director 113,230 0.51%

Syeda Shahbano Abbas Director 1,500 0.01%

KhwajaAhmad Hosain Director 260,000 1.18%

Muhammad Yagoob Director 1,100 0.01%

Employees Provident Fund Contributory Provident Fund - -

Employees Gratuity Fund Contributory Gratuity Fund - -

35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Fair value isthe amount that would be received on sale of an asset or paid on transfer of aliability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and fair value estimates.
Underlying thedefinition of fair valueisthe presumption that the Company isagoing concern without any intention or requirement to
curtail materially the scaleof itsoperationsor to undertakeatransaction on adverseterms.

Thefair valueof financial assetsand liabilitiestradedin activemarketsi.e. listed equity sharesare based on the quoted market pricesat
theclose of trading onthe period end date. The quoted market pricesused for financial assetsheld by the Company iscurrent bid price.
Afinancia instrument isregarded asquoted in an active market if quoted pricesarereadily and regularly availablefrom an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those pricesrepresent actual and regularly occurring market
transactionsonanarm’slengthbasis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value M easurements requiresthe Company to classify fair valuemeasurementsusing afair value hierarchy that reflects
thesignificanceof theinputsused in making the measurements. Thefair valuehierarchy hasthefollowinglevels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active marketsfor identical assetsor liabilities(level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted pricesincluded withinlevel 1 that areobservablefor theasset or liability, either directly (thatis, asprices) or
indirectly (thatis, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputsfor theasset or liability that are not based on observable market data(that is, unobservableinputs) (level 3).
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351 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financid liabilities, including their levelsin the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount Fair value
Held at Other financial
Loans and fair value assets and
Financial assets and liabilities receivables through liabilities at Total Levell — Level2 Level3 Total

profit or loss amortized cost

30 June 2018 Rupees Rupees

Financial assets measured at fair value

Short term investments - 388,823,056 - 388,823,056 388,823,056 - - 388,823,056

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade debts 353,437,290 - - 353,437,290 - - - -
Advances 5,767,595 - - 5,767,595 - - - -
Trade deposits 2,032,071 - - 2,032,071 - - - -
Other receivables 1,609,545 - - 1,609,545 - - - -
Short-term investments 66,770,000 - - 66,770,000 - - - -
Long-term deposits 1,793,600 - - 1,793,600 - - - -
Cash and bank balances 25,630,333 - - 25,630,333 - - - -
Total financial assets 457,040,434 388,823,056 - 845,863,490 388,823,056 - - 388,823,056

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Short-term borrowings - - 419,694,378 419,694,378 - - - -
Markup accrued - - 5,495,901 5,495,901 - - - -
Trade and other payables - - 95,592,721 95,592,721 - - - -
Total financial liabilities - - 520,783,000 520,783,000 - - - -
Carrying amount Fair value
Held at Other financial
Loans and fair value assets and
. .y eres Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets and liabilities receivables through liabilities at v v v

profit or loss amortized cost

30 June 2017 Rupees Rupees

Financial assets measured at fair value

Short-term investments - 371,791,919 - 371,791,919 371,791,919 - - 371,791,919
Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade debts 208,638,227 - - 208,638,227 - - - -
Advances 12,989,221 - - 12,989,221 - - - -
Trade deposits 2,824,455 - - 2,824,455 - - - -
Other receivables 770,000 - - 770,000 - - - -
Short-term investments 57,640,000 - - 57,640,000 - - - -
Long-term deposits 1,793,600 - - 1,793,600 - - - -
Bank balances 28,408,272 - - 28,408,272 - - - -
Total financial assets 313,063,775 371,791,919 - 684,855,694 371,791,919 - - 371,791,919
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Short-term borrowings - - 302,542,529 302,542,529 - - - -
Markup accrued - - 5,135,461 5,135,461 - - - -
Trade and other payables - - 103,641,855 103,641,855 - - - -
Total financial liabilities - - 411,319,845 411,319,845 - - - -
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35.2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company hasexposureto thefollowing risksfromitsuseof financial instruments:

- Creditrisk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and
processesfor measuring and managing risk. Further quantitativedisclosuresareincluded throughout thesefinancia statements.

TheBoard of Directorshasoverall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’srisk management framework.
TheBoardisresponsiblefor devel oping and monitoring the Company’srisk management policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limitsand controls, and to monitor risksand adherenceto limits. Risk management policiesand systemsarereviewed regularly to
reflect changesin market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through itstraining and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Company's Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies
and proceduresand reviewsthe adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to therisksfaced by the Company. TheAudit
Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Auditor. Internal Auditor undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk
management controlsand procedures, theresultsof which arereported to the Audit Committee.

35.2.1 Credit risk

Credit risk refersto the risk that the counterparty will fail to perform or fail to pay amounts due, resulting in financial loss to the
Company. The primary activities of the Company are manufacturing and sale of commercial explosives. The Company isexposed to
creditrisk fromitsoperation and certaininvesting activities.

The Company’scredit risk exposuresare categorised under thefollowing headings:
Counterparties

In relation to the Company's exposure to credit risk, trade debtors and financia institutions are major counterparties and the
Company'spoliciesto managerisk inrelationto these counter partiesare explainedin thefollowing paragraphs.

Trade debts

Credit risk with respect to trade debts is diversified due to the number of entities comprising the Company’s customer base. Trade
debtsare essentially due from the entities engaged in cement manufacturing, construction, mining and oil and gas exploration service
providers. The Company has acredit policy that governsthe management of credit risk, including the establishment of counterparty
credit repayment timeline and specific transaction approvals. The Company limits credit risk by assessing credit worthiness of
potential counterparties before entering into transactions with them and continuing to evaluate their credit worthiness after
transactions have been initiated. Further the Company for all major customers enters into a written agreement, and amongst the
provisions agreed are product rates and repayment terms. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate val ue of transactionsconcluded isspread amongst approved counterparties.

Collectability is assessed based on the creditworthiness of the customer as determined by credit checks and the customer’s payment
history to the Company. The Company establishesaprovision for doubtful debtsin respect of trade debtsand historically such losses
have been within management’ sexpectations.

Bank balances and investments
The Company maintains its bank balances and makes investments in money market funds with financial institutions of high credit

ratings. The investment made in ABL Cash Fund, Faysal Money Market Fund and UBL Liquidity Plus Fund is exposed to minimal
credit risk asthese are open-ended coll ective schemes, while deposits held with banks can either be redeemed upon demand or havea
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short termmaturity of six monthsand thereforeal so bear minimal risk.
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets of the Company represents the maximum credit exposure. The Company does not have any

significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics and the
maximum financial exposuredueto credit risk onthe Company’sfinancial assetsasat 30 Junewas;

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees Rupees
Trade debts 353,437,290 208,638,227
Advances 5,767,595 12,989,221
Trade deposits 2,032,071 2,824,455
Other receivables 1,609,545 770,000
Short-term investments 455,593,056 429,431,919
Long-term deposits 1,793,600 1,793,600
Bank balances 25,590,675 28,408,272
845,823,832 684,855,694
Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date by type of customer was:
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees Rupees
Cement manufacturers 28,405,317 19,928,984
Oil and gas exploration service providers 76,083,259 28,184,669
Construction and mining entities 248,948,714 160,524,574
. 353,437,290 208,638,227
Impairment losses
The aging of trade debts at the reporting date was:
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Gross debts  Impairment Grossdebts  Impairment
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Not past due 136,242,185 - 102,898,636 -
Past due 0-30 days 118,582,008 90,992,095 -
Past due 31-60 days 66,745,841 14,747,496 -
Past due 61-90 days 31,867,256 - -
Past due 91-365 days - - -
Over 365 days - - -
353,437,290 208,638,227 -

The movement in impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Rupees Rupees
Balance at 01 July - 612,270
Doubtful debts recovered - (612,270)

Balance at 30 June - -
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The management constantly evaluates the creditworthiness of the customers and considers the historical payment record of
customers. Inrelation to thetrade debtsthat are past due, the management believesthat counterpartieswill dischargetheir obligations
and accordingly no additional allowancefor impairment isrequired.

The allowance account in respect of other receivablesisused to record impairment | osses, when no recovery of the amount owingis
possible; at that point theamount considered irrecoverableiswritten off by the Company.

35.2.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk resultsfrom the Company's potential inability to meet itsfinancia liabilities, e.g. settlement of borrowings and paying
itssuppliers. Theresponsibility for liquidity risk management restswith the Board of Directors of the Company and their approachin
this regard is to ensure that the Company aways has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. Beyond effective working capital and cash management, the
Company mitigatesliquidity risk by arranging short termfinancing from highly rated financial institutions.

Thematurity profileof the Company’sfinancial liabilitiesbased onthe contractual amountsareasfollows:

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total 6 months or 6to 12 1to2 2toS More than
30 June 2018 amount ota less months years years 5 years
Rupees Rupees

Maturity upto one year

Short-term borrowings 419,694,378 419,694,378 | | 419,694,378 - - - -

Markup accrued 5,495,901 5,495,901 5,495,901 - - - -

Trade and other payables 95,592,721 95,592,721 95,592,721, - - - -
520,783,000 520,783,000 520,783,000 - - - -
520,783,000 520,783,000 520,783,000 - - - -

30 June 2017

Maturity upto one year

Short-term borrowings 302,542,529 302,542,529 | | 302,542,529 - - - -

Markup accrued 5,135,461 5,135,461 5,135,461 - - - -

Trade and other payables 103,641,855 103,641,855 | 103,641,855 - - - -
411,319,845 411,319,845 411,319,845 - - - -
411,319,845 411,319,845 411,319,845 - - - -

35.2.3 Market risk

Market fluctuations may result in cash flow and profit volatility risk for the Company. The Company's operating activitiesaswell as
itsinvestment and financing activitiesare affected by changesin foreign exchangerates, interest ratesand security prices. To optimize
theallocation of thefinancial resourcesaswell as secure an optimal return for its sharehol ders, the Company identifies, analyzesand
proactively managesthe associated financial market risks. The Company seeksto manageand control theserisksprimarily throughits
regular operating and financing activities.

Foreign currency risk management

PKR isthe functional currency of the Company and exposure arises from transactions and balancesin currencies other than PKR as
foreign exchangeratefluctuationsmay create unwanted and unpredi ctable earningsand cash flow vol atility. The Company'spotential
currency exposure comprise;

- Transactional exposureinrespect of nonfunctional currency monetary items.
- Transactional exposureinrespect of nonfunctional currency expenditureand revenues.
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Thepotential currency exposuresarediscussed below;

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items

Monetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
Company are periodically restated to PKR equivalent, and the associated gain or loss is taken to the statement of profit or loss. The
foreign currency risk related to monetary itemsismanaged aspart of theri sk management strategy.

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues

Certain operating and capital expenditure isincurred by the Company in currency other than the functional currency. Certain sales
revenue is earned in currencies other than the functional currency of the Company. These currency risks are managed as a part of
overall risk management strategy. The Company doesnot enter into forward exchange contracts.

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Company’sexposureto foreign currency risk wasasfollowsbased on following amounts:

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

USD usD

Trade debts 572,940 745,632
Bank balances and investments 564,384 554,890
Trade creditors 78,472 194,285

1,215,796 1,494,807
The significant exchange rates applied during the year were:

Average rate Reporting date closing rate
30 June 2018 30June2017 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

USD 1 113.10 104.65 121.40 104.80

Sensitivity analysis

A 10 percent weakening of the PKR against the USD at 30 June would have increased profit by the amounts shown below. This
analysisassumesthat all other variables, in particul ar interest rates, remain constant.

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees Rupees
Statement of profit or loss 14,759,763 15,665,579

A 10 percent strengthening of the PKR against the USD at 30 Junewoul d have had the equal but oppositeeffect on USD to theamounts
shown above, onthebasisthat all other variablesremain constant.

Interest rate risk

Theinterest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest rates.
Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from mismatches of financial assets and liabilities that mature in agiven period. The Company
adoptsapolicy to ensurethat interest raterisk arising onitsfinancial assetsis minimized by investing in fixed rate investmentslike
TDRs.

Profile

Atthereporting datetheinterest rate profile of the Company’ sinterest-bearing financial instrumentswas:
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30 June 2018 30June 2017 30 June 2018 30 June 2017

% % Rupees Rupees
Financial assets
Fixed rate instrument
Term deposit receipts 2.10 2.00 66,770,000 57,640,000
Bank balances - saving accounts 3.75 3.75 29,886 21,592
66,799,886 57,661,592

Financial liabilities

Variable rate instrument

Short-term borrowings 7.01 -7.37 7.01-737 419,694,378 302,542,529
419,694,378 302,542,529

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assetsand liabilitiesat fair value through profit or loss, and the Company
doesnot have derivatives as hedging instrumentsrecognized under fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore, achangeininterest
ratesat thereporting datewould not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A changeof 100 basispointsininterest rateswould haveincreased/ decreased profit or lossby Rs. 5,273,280 (2017: Rs. 3,241,974).
Pricerisk

The Company isexposed to pricerisk because of investment in marketabl e securitiesheld by the Company in ABL Cash Fund, Faysal
Money Market Fund and UBL Liquidity PlusFund. Theseinvestmentsare classified asinvestmentsat fair valuethrough profit or loss.
The Company makesinvestment in securitiesin accordancewiththeBoard of Directors approval.

Sensitivity analysis —equity price risk

A change of Rs. 1 in value of investment at fair value through profit or loss would have increased / decreased profit or loss by Rs.
12,185,012 (2017: Rs. 16,774,481).

353 Determination of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and non-
financial assetsand liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or disclosure purposes based on thefollowing
methods:
Investmentin fair value through profit or loss
Thefair valueof held for tradinginvestment isdetermined by referencetotheir quoted closing repurchase priceat thereporting date.

Non - derivative financial assets

Thefair value of non-derivativefinancial assetsisestimated asthe present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of
interest at thereporting date. Thisfair valueisdetermined for disclosure purposes.

Non - derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is cal culated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash
flows, discounted at themarket rate of interest at thereporting date.
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36 CAPITALMANAGEMENT

The Company's obj ective when managing capital isto safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain a strong capital base to support the
sustained devel opment of itsbusinesses.

The Company manages its capital structure which comprises capital and reserves by monitoring return on net assets and makes
adjustmentstoitin thelight of changesin economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and/or issue new shares. Therewere no changesto Company's approach to capital
management during theyear and the Company isnot subject to externally imposed capital requirement.

37 CAPACITYAND PRODUCTION
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rated
Products Units  production Actual production
capacity

Tovex water gel and powder Kgs 6,000,000 4,745,850 3,463,294
Detonator - plain / electric Nos. 9,000,000 608,179 1,664,654
Safety fuse Meter 500,000 - -
Detonating cord Meter 2,500,000 2,269,244 1,420,250

The shortfall in production of certain productsis due to the gap between market demand and the available capacity.

38 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR SHARIAH COMPLIANT COMPANIES
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Description Rupees Rupees
i) Loans/ advances obtained as per Islamic mode 8,560,158 6,248,709
ii)  Shariah compliant bank deposits/ bank balances 25,560,789 28,386,680

iii) Profit earned from shariah compliant bank deposits/ bank balance - -
iv) Net revenue earned from a shariah compliant business segment 1,678,537,097 1,199,632,223
v) Gain/lossor dividend earned from shariah compliant - -
vi) Exchange gain earned 11,594,726 -
vii) Markup paid on Islamic mode of financing - -

viii) Profits earned or interest paid on any conventional loan or advance - -

For profits earned on conventional investments and finance cost on conventional short-term running finance facilities, refer
notes 25 and 28 respecitvely.

iX) Relationship with shariah compliant banks:

The Company maintains bank balances placed under shariah permissible arrangement with Faysal Bank Limited, Allied
Bank Limited and United Bank Limited. Further, the Company has made conventional investments in mutual funds (refer
note 14) and obtained conventional short-term running facilities (refer note 17) with the abovementioned banks.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

42.2.1

42.2.2

Un-audited Audited
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND TRUST Rupees Rupees
Size of the fund (total assets) 77,633,018 65,561,451
Cost of investments made 76,141,462 62,159,370
Fair value of investments 76,382,624 63,366,589
% %
Percentage of investments made 98.08 94.81
Breakup of investmentsis as follows:
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Rupees % Rupees %
Nationa Saving Certificates 37,700,000 49.51 35,350,000 56.87
NAFA Money Market Fund 14,849,893 19.50 6,664,591 10.72
NAFA Stock Fund 9,636,398 12.66 8,939,407 14.38
Meezan Sovereign Fund 13,955,171 18.33 11,205,372 18.03
76,141,462 62,159,370

All theinvestmentsout of provident fund trust have been madein accordancewith the provisionsof Section 218 of the CompaniesAct
2017 (previously the Companies Ordinance, 1984) and therulesformulated for thispurpose.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTAFTER REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors proposed final dividend at the rate of Rs. 5.00 per share and 20% bonus shares in its meeting held on 18

September 2018.

As stated in note 1.2, in an extraordinary general meeting held on 17 July 2018, the members authorized the Company to make

investmentin ordinary sharecapital of AuxinBiafo.

DATE OFAUTHORIZATION FORISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 18 September

2018.
GENERAL
Figureshave been rounded off tothenearest rupee.

Number of persons employed

Employees on year end (number)
Average employees during the year (number)

Thisincludes181 (2017: 137) number of factory employees.

Thisincludes165 (2017: 129) number of factory employees.

- 5

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director &

Chief Executive Officer

Note 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
4221 222 177
42.2.2 205 167

Chairman
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018
NO. OF SHARE HOLDING TOTAL NUMBER OF
SHAREHOLDERS FROM TO SHARES HELD
208 1 100 9,821
231 101 500 67,559
204 501 1,000 137,431
261 1,001 5,000 551,663
45 5,001 10,000 306,476
18 10,001 15,000 217,956
14 15,001 20,000 257,275
6 20,001 25,000 129,867
2 25,001 30,000 55,450
2 30,001 35,000 66,000
3 35,001 40,000 110,600
2 40,001 45,000 83,360
4 45,001 50,000 191,487
1 55,001 60,000 57,218
5 60,001 70,000 329,700
1 70,001 80,000 75,423
4 80,001 90,000 356,650
2 90,001 100,000 198,550
3 100,001 125,000 333,230
2 140,001 150,000 298,280
1 190,001 200,000 200,000
1 215,001 220,000 216,500
1 220,001 225,000 224,110
1 255,001 260,000 260,000
1 270,001 275,000 275,000
1 325,001 330,000 329,000
1 455,001 460,000 455,654
1 790,001 800,000 790,720
1 1,690,001 1,700,000 1,698,510
1 1,810,001 1,815,000 1,815,000
1 1,900,001 1,905,000 1,903,900
1 4,400,001 4,500,000 4,497,610
1 5,400,001 5,500,000 5,500,000
1031 22,000,000
SHAREHOLDER'S CATEGORY NUMBERS OF NUMBERS OF PERCENTAGE
SHAREHOLDERS SHARE HELD
INDIVIDUALS 993 19,237,382 87.44%
JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 29 2,157,265 9.81%
INSURANCE COMPANIES 2 149,280 0.68%
OTHERS 1 17,881 0.08%
INVESTMENT COMPANIES 1 200,000 0.91%
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 1 2,190 0.01%
CHARITABLE TRUSTS 1 3,900 0.02%
MUTUAL FUNDS 3 232,102 1.06%
1,031 22,000,000 100.00%
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS NUMBER SHARES HELD % AGE
Directors, CEO & their Spouse and Minor Children
Ayesha Humayun Khan 1 5,500,000 25.00
M. Zafar Khan 1 4,497,610 20.44
KhawajaAmanullah Askari & Ishrat Askari 1 329,000 150
KhwajaAhmad Hosain 1 260,000 1.18
M. Afzal Khan 1 150,000 0.68
Adnan Aurangzeb 1 113,230 0.51
Ehsan Mani 1 87,450 0.40
M. Humayun Khan 1 66,000 0.30
Shirin Safdar 1 49,500 0.23
Syed Zaffar Mehdi Askree 1 17,600 0.08
Mehreen Hosain 1 12,146 0.06
Syeda Shahbano Abbas 1 1,500 0.01
Muhammad Yagoob & Maliha Yagoob 1 1,100 0.01
Banks, Development Finance Institutions,
Non Banking Finance I nstitutions, |nsurance Companies, 33 814,125 3.70
& Modarba
Mutual Funds:
CDC - Trustee AKD Opportunity Fund 1 222,702 1.01
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Stock Fund 1 93 0.00
MCBFSL - Trustee AKD Islamic Stock Fund 1 9,300 0.04
Other Individuals 979 4,451,234 20.23
Shareholders holding 5% or more shares in the Company:
Basit Waheed 1 1,903,900 8.65
Shayan Afzal Khan Abbas 1 1,815,000 8.25
Orient Trading Limited 1 1,698,510 7.72
TOTAL 1,031 22,000,000 100.00

Details of trading in the shares by the Director, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their Spouses and minor children:

Shares Sold /
Shares Purchased Transferred

KhawajaAmanullah Askari & Ishrat Askari - 1,000
KhwajaAhmad Hosain 10,520 -
Adnan Aurangzeb - 500
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

PROXY FORM

TheSecretary

Biafo IndustriesLimited
1st Floor, Biafo House,
Plot No. 23, St No. 38-40
I1& T Centre, G-10/4,

|slamabad.

[/We Of being
member of BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED and Holder of Ordinary Shares as per Share Register
Folio (Number) and/ or CDC Participant 1.D. No. and Sub Account No.

hereby appoint of (Name)

asmy/our proxy tovotefor me/usand on my/our behalf at the 30th Annual General M eeting of the Company to beheld
at itsregistered office, 1st Floor, Biafo house, Plot No. 23, St No. 38-40, 1& T Centre, G-10/4, 1slamabad on October
24,2018 at 11:30 am and any adjournment thereof.

Signed day of 2018

Signature
(Signature should agree with the specimen
signature registered with the Company)

WITNESSES:

1. Signature 2. Signature
Name Name
Address Address
CNIC or CNIC or
Passport No. Passport No.

Note:

1. Amember entitled to be present and vote at the M eeting may appoint aproxy to attend and votefor him/her. A
proxy need not beamember of the Company.

2. Proxiesin order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48
hoursbeforethe Meeting.

3. CDC Shareholdersand their Proxies must each attach an attested photocopy of their Computerized National
Identity Card or Passport with theproxy form.
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
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* BIAFO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

TheSecretary

Biafo IndustriesLimited
1st Floor, Biafo House,
Plot No. 23, St No. 38-40
I1& T Centre, G-10/4,

| slamabad.

Bank account details for payment of Dividend through Electronic Mode
Dear Sir,

I/WelMessrs., ,
being shareholder(s) of Biafo Industries Limited hereby authorize the Company to directly credit cash dividends
declared by it, inmy bank account asdetailed bel ow:
(i) Shareholder's details:
Name of the Shareholder
CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account No. /CDC IAS
CNIC/NICOP/Passport/NTN No. (please attach copy)
Contact Number (Landline & Cell Nos.)
Shareholder's Address

(ii) Shareholder's Bank account details:
Title of Account
IBAN *
Bank's Name
Branch Name & Code No.
Branch Address

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and | shall keep the Company informed in case of any
changesinthesaid particularsinfuture.

Yourstruly,

Signatureof Shareholder
(Pleaseaffix company stampin caseof corporateentity)

Notes:
*  Please provide complete IBAN, after checking with your concerned branch to enable electronic credit
directly intoyour bank account.

** This letter must be sent to shareholder's participant/CDC Investor Account Services which maintains
his/her CDC account for incorporation of bank account detailsfor direct credit of cash dividend declared
by the Company fromtimetotime.
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1st Floor, Biafo House, Plot No. 23, Street No. 38-40,
I&T Centre, G-10/4, Islamabad - Pakistan.
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